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Chairman’s Letter

April 17, 2015

Last year, we continued to witness volatile and challenging
economic conditions both in the domestic and the international
markets. The Chinese economy was negatively affected by the
combined impact of continued reduced external demand and
structural adjustments, coupled with economic reform domestically.
The banking industry experienced several important policy changes,
including (i) the easing of interest rate controls as the PBOC
increased the deposit rate ceiling in November 2014, and (ii) the
increased scrutiny of non-bank financial institutions lending which
led to overall tighter lending conditions. Furthermore, China is
moving forward in its interest rate reform, and the State Council

issued draft regulations on deposit insurance in December 2014.

In 2014, the profitability of Morgan Stanley Bank International
(China) Limited (“MSBIC”, the “Bank” or “Our Bank”) increased
compared with that of the previous year. This was mainly due to (i)
the trading gains arising from financial assets held for trading; (ii)
the increase in net interest income arising from interest-bearing
assets; (iii) the increase of FXEM offshore market advisory fee; and
(iv) decrease of non-operating expenses. The combined positive
effect was only partly offset by the decrease in revenue from loan

syndication which is expected to pick up in 2015 as Chinese
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corporates gradually diversify from traditional bilateral loans to loan
syndication and other more sophisticated financing products. All of
MSBIC’s regulatory ratios with hard limits met the regulatory

requirements.

In 2014, MSBIC continued to make changes and enhancements in
response to the regulator’s opinions and guidance as well as our self-
identified findings. The changes covered various areas of the Bank,
including but not limited to corporate governance, trading
supervision, risk and access controls, Information Technology and
Compliance. The considerable progress made has been recognized

by the regulator as well.

We have taken a number of actions on the Bank’s corporate
governance to further empower the Board of Directors and senior
management of the Bank to run and oversee it more independently.

The key highlights of these changes include:

o The change of the reporting line within the Bank and the
empowerment of the legal entity management continued to be
implemented during 2014. Similar to the approach we took at
the end of 2013, MSBIC Acting GM and the respective
functional heads at the end of 2014 jointly evaluated the
performance of each MSBIC department head. The decisions
on compensation were proposed jointly by the MSBIC Acting

GM and the respective Morgan Stanley functional heads.
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These proposals were presented by the Acting GM, together
with the overall performance evaluation documentation, to the
Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee

of the Bank for its reviews and approval.

o We have recruited more senior roles to support the
management and supervise the business of the Bank. The new
GM is based in Zhuhai, and was hired in August 2014. His
application as the GM is pending CBRC approval. The GM is
empowered to supervise and direct the day-to-day
management of the Bank. Our new Head of Internal Audit
joined the Bank in September 2014. The Head of Legal of the
Bank joined in February 2015. The new Head of Human
Resources joined in March 2015. The Bank has also hired a
new Chief Information Officer, who is expected to join in
April 2015. These newly recruited roles, together with other
senior management of the Bank, are all based at the

headquarters of the Bank.

o The shareholder has approved to add additional directors to the
Bank. The application of the new directors has been submitted
to the regulator for approval. The Bank’s Board of Directors
and its various committees will be reconstituted once the new

directors are approved.

° The Bank has also taken various actions to enhance the

supervision on the Bank’s trading business which has
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strengthened the risk control and oversight within the company.
A written trading mandate was issued by the Acting GM to the
Bank’s traders in 2014. We also reviewed books/systems
access entitlement in all applications to ensure the traders of
the Bank do not have inappropriate access to offshore
books/systems, and non-bank traders or other non-bank
personnel do not have inappropriate access to onshore

books/systems.

o In addition, the Bank has taken comprehensive actions to
improve credit and operational risk controls, lower down the
staff turnover rate, put in place an IT risk management
structure, and compliance management enhancements /

operational risk controls such as access controls and policies.

MSBIC’s three-year business plan was approved by the Bank’s
Board of Directors in April 2014. MSBIC will play to Morgan
Stanley’s strengths and core competencies. In the near future, the
Bank will focus on further developing trading and loan syndication,
it will concurrently grow the lending business and it plans to enter
the business of securitization. We believe that the Bank will benefit
greatly from a derivatives license and it intends to apply for it in due
course. It should help to further benefit from offering more value
added products to clients, particularly as the Chinese financial

market further liberalizes. This will also support MSBIC’s revenue
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and profit growth, provided that the appropriate risk controls and

management are put in place, which is our plan.

In 2014, MSBIC submitted the ICAAP (Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process) document to CBRC. Through the ICAAP, the
Bank has identified and assessed material risks in relation to its risk
profile, and has set up capital target under the 3-year business plan.
The result of the ICAAP was favorable, meaning that the Bank has
adequate capital to fulfill both the regulatory and economic capital
requirements corresponding to its business scope in the 3-year’s

planning horizon.

In 2014, with the implementation of new business plan and the
above-mentioned changes, the Bank grew in an orderly and prudent
manner and ensuring steady and stable growth. MSBIC’s Board of
Directors and senior management will take every effort to run the
Bank in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations and the

CBRC'’s expectations.

China is a critical part of Morgan Stanley’s global strategy and it is a
priority. We are committed to this market with a long-term
investment view. Consistent with the development strategy and great
value potential of our commercial banking franchise in China, we
hope that with our focus, with the support of the regulators and our

parent bank, the dedicated leadership of the Board of Directors of

10
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the Bank, a strong bank management team and the efforts of all staff

of the Bank, we will achieve our strategic objectives for MSBIC.

4

Carlos Alfonso Oyarbide Seco
Chairman of Board of Directors

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

11
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“Board™:

“CBRC™:

“CBRC

Guangdong”:

“GMH

“MSBIC”, the
“Bank”, or
“Our Bank™:

“PBoC”:

Definitions
the board of directors of the Bank
the China Banking Regulatory Commission

the CBRC Guangdong Office
the General Manager of the Bank
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China)

Limited

the People’s Bank of China
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BASIC INFORMATION

Registered Chinese
Corporate Name

Registered English
Corporate Name

Legal
Representative:

Registered Capital:
Shareholder

Scope of Business:

FEAR PR PriAT ORED AR A

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China)
Limited

Carlos Alfonso Oyarbide Seco

RMB 1 billion (as of 31 December 2014)
Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited

The Bank is permitted to provide the
following services to any customers for
foreign currency business and to customers
except for China citizens in the territory of
China for RMB business: accepting public
deposits; providing short-term, medium and
long-term loans; undertaking acceptance and
discounting of negotiable instruments; buying
and selling government bonds, financial
bonds, and other foreign currency securities
except for shares; providing letters of credit
service and guarantee; conducting domestic
and international settlements; buying and
selling foreign currency for its own accounts
or as agents; inter-bank borrowing and
lending; providing bank card service;
providing safety box service; providing credit
investigation and consultancy service; and
other businesses approved by CBRC.

16
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Branch
Information:

Registered
Address:

Office Address:

Contact Phone
Number:

Date of First
Registration:

Authority of
Registration:

Business License

Number:

Financial

Institution License

Number:

Tax Registration

Certificate

The Bank was approved by CBRC on 10 June
2009 to establish a branch in Beijing and
obtained the branch business license on 24
June 2009, with operating period from 24
June 2009 to 14 December 2024.

The Beijing Branch’s office address — Units
6B, 6, 8, 10, Tower 1, 18 Taipinggiao Street,
Xicheng District, Beijing, PRC

28/F 2801-2807, 2816, Yuecai Building,
No.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai,
Guangdong, PRC

28/F 2801-2807, 2816, Yuecai Building,
No0.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai,
Guangdong, PRC

0756-3212188

December 14 ,1984

Guangdong Administration of Industry and
Commerce

440000400000859

B0029H144040001

B B 22 440401X 175027795

17
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Number: B8 4 i 2440401 X 175027792

Auditor: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd

Address: 30/F Bund Center, 222 Yan An
Road East, Shanghai 200002, PRC

Client Service & +86 756 321-2188

liant Hotli
Compliant Hotline a5 10 8356-3019 (Beijing Branch)

18
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INTRODUCTION OF MORGAN STANLEY

BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

Our Bank is wholly owned by Morgan Stanley Bank International

Limited, a subsidiary of Morgan Stanley group.

The Bank, formerly known as Nan Tung Bank Ltd, Zhuhai (“Nan
Tung Bank”), becomes a Morgan Stanley group company since
September 2006, and officially changed to the current name on May
30, 2007. Established in 1984 with the approval from PBOC, Nan
Tung Bank was the first wholly foreign-owned bank incorporated
and headquartered in mainland China and the first foreign-funded
bank in the Zhuhai Special Economy Zone. The Bank has been
providing quality banking products and services to various clients
with the service principles of being professional, innovative, flexible

and practical.

Morgan Stanley, the Bank’s ultimate holding company, is a leading
global financial services firm that provides a wide range of
investment banking, securities, investment management and wealth
management services. Morgan Stanley serves corporations,
governments, institutions and individuals worldwide from more than

1300 offices in 42 countries.

20
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B IR AR AR B F A B L

AT ME— AR 2 BEAR PR BR 47 A PR A W] (Morgan
Stanley Bank International Limited) , AS#k 5 Hi Py Fo R EL (5] 48
)

SHARERHOLDER’S NAME AND CHANGES

Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited is the sole shareholder of
the Bank. There was no shareholding change to our Bank within the

reporting period.

21
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SHARERHOLDER’S BACKGROUND

Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited is a private limited
company incorporated under the laws of England and Wales on
February 23, 1999 (registration number 3722571), with registered
office at 25 Cabot Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 4QA, United
Kingdom. The main business activity of Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited is the provision of financial services to
corporations, governments, financial institutions and individual
investors. Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited provides
financial advisory services; corporate and retail lending; sales,
trading, financing and market-making activities in fixed income
securities, including foreign exchange and investment activities.
Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited is ultimately 100% held
by Morgan Stanley. In addition to holding 100% share in our Bank,
Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited operates one branch in
Italy, Germany and Korea respectively. Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited had total assets of approximately GBP5 billion
as at December 31, 2014.

23
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SHARERHOLDER’S MEETING INFORMATION

As the sole shareholder of the Bank, Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited acts through its board of directors to exercise
its shareholder responsibilities. The board of directors of Morgan
Stanley Bank International Limited, representing the Bank’s

shareholder:

(1) holds regular meetings and ad hoc meetings (where

necessary);

(2) reviews the Bank’s reports, including (i) market updates, (ii)
strategic initiatives, (iii) business updates, and (iv) financial

updates;

(3) approves nomination of directors/supervisors of the Bank

and, where needed, capital injection proposals; and

(4) approves other important matters that are required to be

approved by the shareholder.

25
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REEMBEA. L EHEHR

N
2014 AAT I NS N E N S A 0 3L A IR F T

CHANGE IN REGISTERED CAPITAL, MERGER &
DIVISION

There were no changes in registered capital, merger or division of the

Bank in 2014.

FoAy R EETH
AAT ARG AATAE 20144 5047 R AL T R X BATT ) 2 7 AT
ATHE AL AR AR 55 77 A B K AN R R ) 55 00

Other Material Events

We believe that our Bank did not have any events in 2014 which may
have material adverse effect on the Bank’s clients and the services

the Bank provides.

26
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Organization Chart of the Bank
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Overall Evaluation on Our Bank’s Corporate Governance

Since August 2013, the Bank has conducted a comprehensive review
and gap analysis on the corporate governance of the Bank according
to the Guidelines on Commercial Banks’ Corporate Governance (the
“Guidelines”) issued by CBRC in July 2013. The proposal to amend
the Articles of Association of the Bank to reflect certain requirements
of the Guidelines has been approved by the Board and the board of
directors of Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited. The
proposed amendments on the Articles of Association have been
approved by CBRC.

There are six committees established under the Board: Compliance
Committee, Related Party Transaction Committee, Risk Committee,
Audit Committee, Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and IT Steering Committee. There are four sub-
committees established under Risk Committee: Business Continuity
Management Committee, Credit Management Committee, Asset and
Liability Management Committee, and Operational Risk Committee.
All committees hold regular or ad hoc meetings for the purposes of
managing and controlling the Bank's various risks through
implementing appropriate internal controls, monitoring the Bank's
risk management policies, procedures and reporting processes, and
examining and approving related party transactions according to laws

and regulations.
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The senior management of the Bank has adequate management
discretion within their scope of responsibilities regarding the Bank’s
business activities. The senior management of the Bank reports to the
Board, endeavoring to achieve capital appreciation and development
of the Bank and maximize the shareholder’s interests. There are four
committees established under the General Manager of the Bank:
Management Committee, Interbank Activities Committee, Anti-
money Laundering Committee, and New Product Committee.
Interbank Activities Committee was established in 2014. These
committees hold meetings on a regular or ad-hoc basis to discuss and
make decisions of related matters.

The Bank changed the reporting lines of senior management and
department heads in 2013 in order to further enhance the local
authority of senior management of the Bank. Currently, the Bank’s
department heads, including the head of trading desks, have a
respective solid reporting line to the GM in addition to their
functional reporting line, with the exception of Internal Audit and
Compliance Department, which report to their respective committees
under the Board. The primary manager of each department head of
the Bank is now the GM (apart from Internal Audit and Compliance
Departments). Each year, the GM of the Bank and the respective
functional heads will jointly agree on objectives for each department
head. They will together evaluate his or her performance at least once
a year. The decisions on compensation will be proposed jointly by

the GM and the respective functional heads each year. These
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proposals will be submitted, together with the overall performance
evaluation documentation, to Human Resources, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Bank for review. In 2014, the Bank
continued to implement such reporting line changes and enhanced

the local management authority of senior management of the Bank.

The Bank has recruited/appointed or is in the process of
recruiting/appointing a number of personnel to further enhance the
Bank’s management and monitor the Bank’s business. For example,
the proposed new GM joined the Bank in August 2014. This
nomination is subject to CBRC’s approval.

The Bank has established the board of supervisors. In addition to the
meeting of the board of supervisors, the supervisors also attended
(without vote right) the board meetings of the Bank. The Board of
Supervisors of the Bank supervises the performance of duties by

directors and senior management of the Bank.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Functions of the Board

The Board shall be responsible to the shareholder and exercise the

following powers in accordance with relevant laws, regulations and

Articles of Association of the Bank:

1)
2)

3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

Formulating and amending the Bank’s Articles of Association;

Determining the Bank’s business plans, investment plans and

strategic policies;

Hearing, examining and approving the General Manager’s

work reports;

Examining and approving the annual final accounts of the

Bank and plans for dealing with any surplus profits;

Appointing and dismissing the Bank’s senior management
personnel and deciding on remuneration programs for directors,
supervisors and senior management personnel, and appointing

external auditors:;

Examining and finalizing the establishment and the dissolution

of the Bank’s internal organizations;

Reporting to the shareholder on a regular basis;
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(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

Approving the basic management system, internal rules and

business plans for daily operations of the Bank;

Setting up various special committees, in accordance with the
Bank’s needs and actual circumstances, for making decisions
in various areas on behalf of the Board, or for providing expert
opinions in various areas to the Board, and for carrying out
inspection and supervision activities with respect to the
business situations in such areas. These special committees

shall each have clear objectives, powers and responsibilities;

Examining and discussing capital increase, capital reduction,

share transfers and other important matters relating to the Bank;

Determining and approving the establishment and termination

of business branches;
Determining and approving profit allocation plans;

Approving any application for extension of the term of the
Bank;

Approving the conduct of court proceedings, arbitrations and

other legal proceedings on behalf of the Bank; and

Other powers as stipulated by laws and regulations, and the
Bank’s Articles of Association, or authorized by the

shareholder.
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There were four members on the Board as of March 31, 2015, the

details of whom are set our below. In addition, several new

directors have been appointed by the shareholder of the Bank.

They will become directors of the Bank upon obtaining the

qualification approval of CBRC.

1.

Mr. Carlos Alfonso OYARBIDE obtained an MBA degree
from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania.
Upon graduation, he worked as an Associate with McKinsey
& Company for three and a half years. From January 1986 to
December 1987, he was a Director of Chase Manhattan Bank
working in the corporate finance department in London. He
subsequently worked at UBS Philips & Drew as an Executive
Director in the corporate finance department from January
1988 to June 1993. Mr. QOyarbide joined Morgan Stanley in
July 1993 and worked for the Firm until May 2003; in this
decade, he held various positions including Managing Director
and Head of Mergers & Acquisitions of Morgan Stanley
Europe Ltd, Managing Director and Head of Mergers &
Acquisitions of Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd, as well as CEO of
Morgan Stanley Spain Ltd. In 2003, he joined Credit Suisse as
a Managing Director and the Asia Pacific Head of Financial
Institutions Group (from June 2003 to July 2007). He rejoined
Morgan Stanley in July 2007, and has been a Managing
Director and the Chief Operating Officer of Morgan Stanley
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China since then. In September 2008, he was appointed as a
Director of MSBIC with the approval from CBRC Guangdong.
Effective from 27 August 2010, Carlos was the Chairman of
the Bank after obtaining the approval from CBRC.

2. Ms. Agnes Lai joined Morgan Stanley in 1995 and has been
working in Finance in various positions including Regional
Finance Chief Operating Officer, Head of Management
Reporting, Head of Business Unit Control for PWM, IBD and
Merchant Banking. Agnes is currently a Managing Director of
Morgan Stanley and the Chief Financial Officer of Morgan
Stanley China. Agnes graduated from the University of
Sydney with a Bachelor of Economics degree major in
Accounting in 1993 and earned her Master of Accounting and
Finance degree from Macquarie University in 1995. She
earned the CPA qualification in 1998. Agnes was appointed as
a Director of MSBIC with the approval from CBRC
Guangdong on 18 April 2013.

3. Mr. Elton Cheung obtained Bachelor of Economics, University
of Sydney in May 1995, and Bachelor of Laws (Honors),
University of Sydney in May 1997. He worked as a senior
attorney with Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer in Hong Kong
and London from January 1998 to September 2006. He was
one of the lead attorneys supporting the Firm’s Merchant

Banking Division across the entire Asia Pacific region from
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September 2006 to December 2008. Then he became the
senior attorney on the China legal team in Morgan Stanley
from December 2008 to June 2010. From June 2010, he
assumed the Head of the China Legal team that provides legal
support across all of Morgan Stanley’s China businesses,
including its onshore as well as offshore business platforms. In
March 2015, Elton was appointed as the Morgan Stanley
China Chief Operating Officer. Effective from 1 April 2011,
Elton was appointed as a MSBIC Director with the approval
from CBRC Guangdong.

4.  Mr. Shangquan Gao graduated from the Faculty of Economics
of St. Paul’s University in Shanghai with a degree in
Economics. He is the Chairman of the China Society of
Economic Reform, the Chairman of China Enterprise Reform
& Development Society, the President of China Institute for
Reform and Development (Hainan), and a member of the
United Nations Development Policy Committee. He is also a
part-time professor and doctorial adviser at Peking University,
Shanghai Jiaotong University and Nankai University, and the
dean and professor of the School of Management, Zhejiang
University. Mr. Gao has been an independent director of the
Bank since September 2006.
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Operation of the Board in 2014

The Board forms an efficient system for decision making and
monitoring and strictly complies with the laws and the Articles of
Association of the Bank in decision-making, authorization and voting
process. All directors of the Bank attend the board meetings with
earnest and responsible attitude, acknowledge the rights, obligations
and responsibilities of directors, are industrious and responsible, and
could focus on the interests of the Bank and the shareholder. During
the year of 2014, there were eight Board meetings on March 20,
April 17, May 15, June 13, July 25, September 22, December 12 and

December 18 respectively.

Work of the Independent Director in 2014

The Independent Director of the Bank has participated in all the
meetings of the Board in 2014. The independent director
independently expressed his objective and impartial views on matters
discussed. The independent director of the Bank participated in the

discussion of the following matters:

(1) The legality and fairness of the related party transactions of the
Bank;

(2) Recruitment of the senior management of the Bank; and

(3) Other important matters relating to the Bank.
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Senior Management of the Bank

The senior management of the Bank, under the leadership of the
Board, is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of the
Bank. The members of the senior management whose qualifications
have been approved by CBRC as of March 31, 2015 included:

1.  Ms. Linda Li obtained her Bachelor Degree of Accountancy
from Harbin Institute of Technology. She earned the
qualification of CPA in China. From September 1996 to May
2003, she worked for the Dandong Branch of Industry and
Commercial Bank of China as an accounting manager. From
June 2003 to July 2006, she worked in Standard Chartered
Bank Shanghai Branch as finance supervisor. From August
2006 to May 2007, she worked in Development Bank of
Singapore as a Financial Project Manager. In June 2007, she
joined United Overseas Bank, acting as the head of Finance
Department. In February 2009, she joined MSBIC and was
appointed as the Head of Finance of MSBIC with the approval
from CBRC Guangdong on 10 September 2009.

2. Ms. Stella Yang obtained dual-Bachelor degrees of Industrial
Management Engineering and Computer and Application from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University. She obtained a Master degree
in Risk Management and Insurance from the School of
Economics in Peking University. Stella obtained her PhD

degree in Insurance and Risk Management from the Wharton
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School of the University of Pennsylvania. Stella served in the
headquarters of Industry and Commercial Bank of China in
Beijing from 1999 to 2000. Stella served in Radian Guaranty
Group, Inc. in Philadelphia in 2005. From 2005 to 2011, she
served in the Headquarters of Morgan Stanley in New York in
the Operational Risk Department from 2005 to 2009, and the
Credit Risk Department from 2009 to 2011. Stella was
appointed as the Chief Risk Officer of MSBIC with the
approval from CBRC Guangdong on 24 June 2013.

3.  Mr. Hao Yang obtained Bachelor's Degree of Computer
Science and Engineering from Tong Ji University in July 1991.
Hao Served in Shanghai OMRON Computer Group from July
1991 to November 1995 and served in Academy Software
Company (In Tokyo) from December 1995 to December
1997. He served in the US Long-term Capital Management
Company in Tokyo from January to December 1998.He joined
Morgan Stanley in December 1998, had assumed duty as
Associate, Vice President and Executive Director in Morgan
Stanley Japan Securities Co., Ltd. from December 1998 to
April 2009 in Tokyo. From May 2009 to April 2011, Hao
assumed duty as the Chief Operating Officer and Executive
Director in Morgan Stanley Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited. From May 2011 till December 2012, Hao
was the Chief Operating Officer and Executive Director of

Morgan Stanley Management Service (Shanghai) Limited.
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Hao joined MSBIC in January 2013 and was appointed as the
Chief Information Officer of MSBIC with the approval from
CBRC Guangdong on 27 June 2013.

4.  Ms. Eva Yang obtained MBA Degree in University of Ballarat,
Australia. Eva served in Agricultural Bank of China Shenzhen
Shangbu Branch from January 1991 to October 1991. Eva
served in Citi Bank Shenzhen Branch from October 1991 to
July 1993. Eva served in Sanwa Bank Ltd Shenzhen Branch
from July 1993 to March 2003. She served in ABN AMRO
Holding Shenzhen Branch from November 2005 to August
2006, and Standard Chartered Bank (China) Co., Ltd. from
August 2006 to March 2011. Eva joined MSBIC in January
2013 and was appointed as the Chief Compliance Officer of
MSBIC with the approval from CBRC Guangdong on
February 18, 2013

5. Ms. Fang Zheng obtained Bachelor Degree of International
Finance and MBA Degree in University of International
Business and Economics in 1993 and 2001 respectively. Fang
Served in China Nam Kwong National Import and Export
Corporation from July 1993 to May 1998. Fang served in
HSBC Beijing Branch from June 1998 to August 2000. Fang
served in Sino-Guaranty Banker Company limited from
December 2001 to September 2002. Fang served in HSBC
Beijing Branch from October 2002 to June 2006. She served in
Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing branch from June
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2006 to April 2012. Fang joined MSBIC Beijing Branch since
April 2012 and was appointed as the Deputy Branch Manager
of MSBIC Beijing Branch with the approval from CBRC
Beijing on April 24 2014.

6.  Ms. Deborah Gao obtained the Bachelor degree of Economics
from the Shenzhen University, and the Master degree of
Business Administration from the Central University of
Finance and Economics. From Apr 2005 to May 2011, she
worked with Woori Bank as Compliance Officer in its
Shenzhen Branch, and then Risk Manager in the headquarters.
During June 2011 to November 2013, she served in Citi Bank
Beijing Branch and was appointed as Compliance Officer for
bank’s Market Access applications and Retail Business. In
December 2013, she joined Morgan Stanley and was appointed
as Compliance officer of MSBIC Beijing Branch with the
approval from CBRC Beijing on May 13, 2014.
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Composition the Functions of the Board of Supervisors

The board of supervisors constitutes the Bank’s supervisory

organization and is responsible to the shareholder the board of

supervisors of the Bank has the following powers:

1)

2)

©)

(4)

()

Exercising scrutiny over the acts of the directors and senior
management personnel in the performance of their duties that
contravene laws and regulations or the Articles of Association
of the Bank; bringing forward proposals for the removal of any
director or senior management who violates any law,
administrative regulation, the Articles of Association or any

resolution of the shareholder’s meeting;

Requesting the rectification of any acts of the directors and
senior management personnel that harm the rights and interests
of the Bank, shareholder, employees, deposit customers, or
other interested parties; organizing the investigation of and

proposing solutions for major cases;

Examining and monitoring the Bank’s financial activities, and

examining the Bank’s annual final accounts;

Reporting to the Shareholder on the status of work

performance of the directors and senior management personnel;

Initiating actions against directors or senior management
according to Article 152 of the PRC Company Law

implemented, and which may be amended from time to time,
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effective from 1 January 2006; and

(6) Other powers as stipulated by laws and regulations, and the
Bank’s Articles of Association, or authorized by the

shareholder.

The supervisors have the right to attend but not vote at meetings of

the Board.
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Composition of the Board of Supervisors

The board of supervisors of the Bank is composed of four
supervisors as of March 31, 2015, the details of whom are set out
below. In addition, the Bank plans to hold an election among the
Bank’s employees to elect an additional employee representative

supervisor.

1. Mr. Brett Dugald Cameron Graham graduated from
Queensland University with Honours in Law in 1987. Prior to
joining Morgan Stanley in June 1997, he was an associate at
Clifford Chance in Hong Kong and Tokyo, and prior to that he
did his legal training and worked as a solicitor, at Morris
Fletcher and Cross, Brisbane (now Minter Ellison), and
Hashidate Law Office in Tokyo. Brett was the Co-Chairman of
Morgan Stanley’s Franchise Risk Committee for Asia Pacific.
Brett was previously the Deputy Head of Legal for Asia
Pacific. Brett Graham was based in Hong Kong, and became a
Managing Director of Morgan Stanley in 2005. Brett is the
General Counsel for Morgan Stanley for the Asia Pacific

region.

2. Mr. Alan Pan graduated in July 1997 from Shanghai Institute
of Foreign Trade with a Bachelor's Degree and obtained a
Master's degree in March 2007. He assumed duty of the Head

of Loan Operation Department in Mizuho Corporate Bank
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Shanghai Branch from July 1997 to November 2004. From
November 2004 to May 2006 he served as the Head of Loan
Operation Department in Deutsche Bank Shanghai Branch.
From May 2006 to March 2013, Alan served as the Head of
Operation Department in Royal Bank of Scotland (China) Co.,
Ltd. Alan Pan joined MSBIC in April 2013. Alan was elected
by the Bank’s employees as a Supervisor of MSBIC in
December 2013.

3. Ms. Tsai Wen Qing, Rachel obtained Bachelor Degree of
Fiscal and Taxation at Zhong Xing University, Taiwan and
Master Degree of Accounting at Syracuse University, America.
Rachel served as senior auditor of KPMG, Taipei from July
1997 to December 1998. From January 1999 to August 2002
Rachel served as Deputy Manager of Accounting at JP Morgan
Securities, Taipei and Deputy Manager of Fund Operation at
JP Morgan Fleming, Taipei. She served as internal auditor of
Goldman Sachs, Taipei Branch from October 2002 to May
2003. Rachel joined Morgan Stanley as Head of Taiwan
Compliance from June 2003 to November 2013 and she is

currently the Head of China Compliance since November 2013.

4,  Mr. Eric Hahne graduated from Bonn University as a
postgraduate. Eric joined Morgan Stanley in May 2000, and
worked in London office until September 2007. Eric moved to

Morgan Stanley Hong Kong office in September 2007 and
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served as the COO for Morgan Stanley Asia Equity
Derivatives since then. Currently, Eric is the COO for Morgan
Stanley Asia Pacific FID (since May 2014) and COO for MSI
Asia (since May 2013).

Operation of the Board of Supervisors in 2014

The Board of Supervisors of the Bank held three meetings on 24
March 2014, 20 June 2014 and 31 December 2014, respectively. In
addition, the Supervisors of the Bank also attended (without voting
rights) the meetings of the Board and participated in discussions on

risk management and control of the Bank.
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Remuneration Policy of the Bank and Remuneration of the

Bank’s Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The Bank’s compensation program is designed to achieve key
objectives: (i) delivering pay-for-performance, (ii) attracting and
retaining top talent, (iii) aligning compensation with shareholder’s

interests, and (iv) mitigating excessive risk-taking.

The Bank’s Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (the “HR Committee”) was appointed by the Board and
established in May 2013. The HR Committee is to assist the Board
to discharge its responsibilities relating to the appointments and
compensation of the Bank’s independent director(s) and senior
management, and to oversee the Bank’s human resources matters.
As of the end of 2014, the HR Committee had held 8 meetings to
review and endorse the human resources management related

matters of the Bank.

Additional business factors will be taken into account when making
salary adjustment and bonus decisions. The Bank’s management
team conducts joint discussions with functional managers to make
the compensation decisions for the senior management members of
the Bank, based on guidance from the Morgan Stanley group and

taking the Bank’s business conditions into consideration. The
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compensation decisions of the senior management of the Bank are

reviewed by the HR Committee.

In respect of each individual, based on the Bank’s and Morgan
Stanley group's annual compensation principle, the performance
results will be the major reference to the employee’s salary

adjustment and annual performance bonus decision.

The Bank will follow Morgan Stanley Group’s Deferral Payment
and Clawback Policy, which is announced by the board of directors
of Morgan Stanley globally on an annual basis, to implement the

deferral payment and clawback arrangement within the Bank.

In 2014, the directors and the supervisors of the Bank were not paid
by the Bank for their director/supervisor positions, except for the

independent director.

The 2014 compensations of the senior management of the Bank

were more than RMB7.1 million.

(Notes: the senior management refers to those who were still the
active employees and had obtained CBRC’s approval as of the end
of 2014)
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Risk Management

Risk is an inherent part of both Morgan Stanley’s and of the Bank’s
business activity. The Bank seeks to identify, assess, monitor and
manage each of the various types of risk involved in its business
activities in accordance with defined policies and procedures. The
Bank has developed its own risk management policy framework,
which is consistent with and leverages the risk management policies
and procedures of the Morgan Stanley group and which include
escalation to appropriate senior management personnel of the Bank
as well as oversight through the Board and through a dedicated Risk

Committee (and its sub-committees) that reports to the Board.

The Board and its Risk Committee, the Senior Management, the sub-
committees of the Risk Committee (including Credit Management
Committee, Operational Risk Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee and BCP Committee), the Risk
Management Department, the Internal Audit Department and the
Compliance Department constitute the main organizational structure
for risk management of the Bank, and directly manage all kinds of

risks through vertical management.

76



AR =PI [ PR AT (b ) A PR 2 7]
Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited

I Credit Risks

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss arising when a borrower and
counterparty does not meet its financial obligations to the Bank.
Credit risk includes the risk that economic, social and political
conditions and events in a foreign country will adversely affect an

obligor’s ability and willingness to fulfill their obligations.

Credit risk management policies and procedures for the Bank are
consistent with those of the Morgan Stanley group and include
escalation to the Board and appropriate key management personnel.
The Bank manages credit risk exposure on a consolidated basis. Its
credit risk management policies and procedures establish the
framework for identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling
credit risk whilst ensuring transparency of material credit risks,
ensuring compliance with established limits and escalating risk

concentrations to appropriate senior management.

The Credit Risk Management Department evaluates the
creditworthiness of the Bank’s obligors on a regular basis, and
ensures that credit exposure is actively monitored and managed. The
evaluation of obligors includes an assessment of the probability that
an obligor will default on its financial obligations and any

subsequent losses that may occur when an obligor defaults.
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In addition, credit risk exposure is actively managed by credit
professionals within the Credit Risk Management Department and
monitored through Credit Management Committee and Risk
Committee. A comprehensive Credit Limits Framework is utilized to
manage credit risk levels within the Bank. The MSBIC’s Credit
Limits Framework is calibrated within the Group’s risk tolerance
and set by the risk appetite of the Board, and includes single-name
limits and portfolio concentration limits by country, industry and

product type.

The Bank incurs credit risk from the primarily lending to institutions
through corporate loan lending, non-bank financial institutions
lending and short-term interbank money market placements. During
2014, in a continual active response to the changes in the
macroeconomic situation, the Bank implemented stable and prudent
credit policies with focus on expanding low-risk high-quality

enterprises.

As of 2014 year end, the Bank’s credit assets including loans and
advances to customers amounted to RMB300,000,000, representing
an increase of 200% over the end of 2013. This was mainly due to
development of new loan customers while maintaining prudent risk

acceptance standards.
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Quiality of credit assets

The Bank's target customers are primarily domestic large leading
corporations, with no exposure to relatively high risk industries like

real estate or industries that are seriously affected by overcapacities.

In 2014 there was no loan classification migration and no non-
performing loan, hence loan migration rate and non-performing loan
ratio remained nil. The classification of all loan assets continued to

be at “Normal”.

The Bank classified its credit assets into five levels in accordance
with the Guidance on Loan Risk Classification promulgated by
CBRC and with consideration of its internal management
requirements. In 2014, all the credit assets were in normal category
according to this five-level classification and there were no bad
loans recorded. This was mainly because both the existing loans and
the newly added loans during the year were all high-quality large

corporate loans.

For a loan and advance to customer that show indication of
impairment, the Bank assesses the credit assets individually for
impairment and makes impairment individually. For credit assets
that are not deemed to be impaired, the Bank assesses the loans and

advances to customer collectively for impairment. According to
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evaluation, as of December 31, 2014, the total credit assets of the
Bank were RMB300,000,000 with no non-performing loan recorded.
The Bank provided loan loss provision amounting to RMB4,500,000
by using collective assessment method and provided nil provision by
using individual assessment method. Pursuant to the relevant
regulatory requirements, the Bank made a general risk reserves
reversal of RMB9,605,000 with the 2014 year end cumulative
balance ending at RMB12,060,000. The balance of the reserves

accrued by the Bank satisfied the relevant regulatory requirements.

Country Risk

Country risk exposure is the risk that uncertainties arising from the
economic, social, security and political conditions within a foreign
country (any country other than the China) will adversely affect the
ability of the sovereign government and/or obligors within the

country to honor their obligations to the Bank.

Country risk exposure is measured in accordance with the Morgan
Stanley group’s internal risk management standards and local
regulatory guidelines, and includes obligations from sovereign
governments, corporations, clearing houses and financial institutions.
The Bank actively manages country risk exposure through a
comprehensive risk management framework that allows the Bank to

effectively identify, monitor and limit country risk.
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The Bank classifies the country risk level according to the rating of
the country and the regulation guidelines. As of December 31, 2014,
the country risk of the related risk assets of the Bank at
RMB144,765,789.83 were all classified as low. The country risk

exposure was mainly related to offshore deposits.

Concentration risk

The Bank strictly follows the requirements of the regulatory
authority to prudently manage the degree of loan concentration. By
the end of 2014, the ratio of single largest borrower over the Bank’s
equity balance was 7.16% and the ratio of related party loans over
the Bank’s equity balance was zero, both in compliance to the

relevant regulatory requirements.

Securities investments

As of December 31, 2014, all the investments of the Bank were in
trading financial assets, with the balance of RMB1,476,793,710. The

investments were mainly under policy bank bonds.

I Market Risk Management

Market risk refers to the risk that a change in the level of one or
more market prices, rates, indices, correlations or other market

factors, such as market liquidity, will result in losses for a position or
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portfolio. The Bank’s market risks mainly include interest rate risk

and foreign exchange risk.

Sound market risk management is an integral part of the Bank’s
culture. The Bank is responsible for ensuring that market risk
exposures are well-managed and prudent and more broadly for
ensuring transparency of material market risks, monitoring
compliance with established limits, and escalating risk

concentrations to the Board and appropriate senior management.

Market risk management policies and procedures for the Bank are
consistent with those of the Morgan Stanley group and local
regulatory requirements to guide the market risk management of the
bank from a legal entity perspective. Market Risk Department is
responsible for the governance and oversight of all market risk
exposures arising from the Bank’s business activities by identifying
and defining market risks, developing and employing risk measures
and tools to monitor and mitigate those risks, establishing tolerances
and limits, monitoring usage against these limits, and producing and
distributing comprehensive reports designed to keep senior

management apprised of the Bank’s market risk exposures.

The Bank has established and enhanced its market risk limits to
reflect its market risk appetite. Market risk limits are monitored
through the limit management system. Limit breaches are managed

according the MSBIC Market Risk Management Policy. The Internal
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Audit Department performs audit on market risk management on a
regular basis to ensure the framework is operating effectively and is

sufficient and efficient.

The Bank's primary trading business is bond trading, including
government bonds, PBoC bills, and policy bank bonds. The bank
measures its market risk in nominal terms, such as number of units
or market value, or through factor sensitivities (e.g. the change of
value with respect to the small change in the price of the underlying

instrument).

11 Operational Risks

Operational risk refers to the risk of loss, or of damage to a bank’s
reputation, resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems, or from external events. This definition includes
legal risk, but excludes strategic risk. The Bank may incur
operational risk across its full scope of business activities, including
revenue-generating activities (e.g., sales and trading) and support
functions (e.g., IT and facilities management). As such, the Bank
may incur operational risk in each of its divisions, as well as in each

oversight group.

The Bank has established an operational risk governance structure,
management strategy and policy in order to protect the Bank to have

continued development. The revision of the above governance
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structure, strategy and policy is approved by the Board. The
Operational Risk Committee is responsible for managing the

operational risk.

The Bank’s operational risk management framework aims to
establish an overall standard of operational risk management for the
bank. The Operational Risk Department, as an independent
operational risk management function, is responsible for operational
risk identification, assessment, monitoring and management. The
bank employs various means to manage its operational risk including
operational risk incident collection, Risk and Control Self
Assessment (RCSA), Key Risk Indicator (KRI) etc. The Bank
revises and improves operational risk management procedures
through monthly operational risk meeting and operational risk
management reports. Issues are promptly reported to senior
management particularly in the areas that have material operational
risk.

In conclusion, the Bank has established an operational risk
management system in accordance with the business nature, scale
and complexity of the bank. The system is capable to identify,

monitor and control/release operational risks in an effective manner.
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IV Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk is the risk of loss or bankruptcy raised from the Bank's
failure to provide sufficient funds for the decrease in liability or the
Increase in assets. Liquidity risk can also be caused by the mismatch
between the amount and maturity between assets and liability. The
Bank has set up liquidity risk management policy and procedure,
focusing on quantization of amount and resources of current and
potential cash flow, identification of extra demand of fund raised
from stressing scenario and evaluation of fund can be obtained

through mortgage and non- mortgage borrowing.

The Asset and Liability Management Committee implements
efficient liquidity management, identify and control the short and
long-term liquidity risk, ensure the Bank operates with prudent
liquidity environment, and at the same time also meet the

requirement of the Bank’s daily operating funding.

With the report on each department’s funding requirements and
related maturity every day, Treasury manages excess cash to control
the funding surplus or shortage by currency. While Treasury overall
manages liquidity risk and FCG calculates liquidity related ratios
and develops liquidity reports. They partner with other departments
to ensure that liquidity related regulatory requirements for foreign

banks operating in China are met.
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The Bank has implemented Contingency Funding Plan (including
liquidity stress test) and reports to Asset and Liability Management
Committee on a monthly basis. The main purpose of liquidity stress
test is to ensure the Bank is still able to carry out normal operations

within a year under credit crunch and liquidity crisis situations.

V Franchise Risk

Franchise risk describes potential risks to the way in which MSBIC
or Morgan Stanley conducts its business and the perception of such
risks by external parties including shareholders, clients, regulators
and the public. Franchise risks may be triggered by either the nature
of a transaction or business practice (e.g., a transaction without
economic substance or business purpose) or by the identity or
reputation of the client or counterparty (e.g., a client linked to
alleged corruption or other improper activities). A loss may be
experienced when the Bank is subject to franchise risk through
negative publicity, regulatory scrutiny, loss of revenue and/or costly
litigation. Certain proposals, transactions, or events may expose the
Bank to franchise risks. The following represent some of the risks

and events that give rise to franchise risk:

. Suitability refers to whether a recommendation made by the
Bank for a given transaction or product is appropriate for a

particular counterparty or client;

. Conflicts of interest can arise when there is a divergence of
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interests between the Bank and its clients, among the Bank’s
clients, or between employees on the one hand, and the Bank

or its clients on the other; and

. Complex structured finance transactions (“CSFTs”) warrant
increased scrutiny and sensitivity because such transactions
may be used to disguise inappropriate or questionable
activities, which give rise to heightened legal or reputational

risks.

If these risks materialize, they could result in damage to the
reputation of the Bank, in addition to having an impact on existing

and new business.

Given the increasingly complex regulatory and market environment,
franchise risk is mitigated through several layers of oversight and
control processes. The Bank’s Legal and Compliance Division as
well as all department and business unit managers serve as
escalation points for potentially significant franchise matters and

raising organizational awareness of franchise risks.

At MSBIC, any activity potentially creating franchise risk is
elevated to senior management. In addition, any relevant matter (in
particular, which may have spillover effect and thus potential risks to
Morgan Stanley’s reputation or franchise) can be escalated by Bank

to governance bodies for franchise risk within Morgan Stanley group
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for further decision.
With respect to other more detailed information, please refer to the

note of the Financial Statements which are attached to the Annual

Report.
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Internal Audit Annual Work Report for 2014

Internal Audit prepares and submits its Internal Audit Annual Work
Report for 2014 in accordance with China Banking Regulatory
Commission’s (CBRC) qguidelines. The audit status and

accomplishments of Internal Audit for 2014 are as follows:

Summary of 2014 work:

1.  Internal Audit reported to the MSBIC Audit Committee in
every quarter of 2014 to update the Audit Committee on the
overall control environment of MSBIC, audit plan status, audit
issue and any significant matters or disagreements. There were
no disagreements from MSBIC management or auditees on
any audit issues raised in 2014.

2. Internal Audit completed the following audits in 2014
according to the approved audit plan:

o Lending and Loan Syndication;

o Bank Compliance;

o 2014 Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) and Capital Management;

o 2014 Consolidated Review of Regulatory Required
Audits: Market Risk Management, Related-Party
Transactions, Fraud  Prevention  Control and

Compensation Management;
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o 2014 Emergency Response and Precautionary Measures
(BCP); and
o 2014 Anti-Money Laundering (Reporting Stage).

3. Internal Audit completed the Exit Audit for the prior General
Manager and Head of Internal Audit in 2014. The Exit Audit
for the Beijing Branch Manager who departed in December
2014 is in progress.

4.  Internal Audit verified the 2013 CBRC Inspection remediation
actions closed in 2014. There are five remediation actions still

in progress.

2015 work plan

1.  Follow-up on the 2014 carry forwarded projects:
o 2014 Anti-Money Laundering (Reporting Stage);
. 2014 Exit Audit for the Beijing Branch Manager; and
o Verification of the 2013 CBRC Inspection remediation
actions.
2. 2015 Audit Project Plan:
o Liquidity Risk Management;
. Beijing Branch;
o Credit and Market Risk Management;

° IT and Qutsourcing;
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o 2015 Consolidated Review of Regulatory Required
Audits — Related Party Transactions, Compensation and
Fraud Case Prevention;

o 2015 Anti-Money Laundering;

o 2015 Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) and Capital Management;

o 2015 Emergency Response and Precautionary Measures;
and

o 2015 Exit Audit.
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MSBIC Activities of Corporate Social Responsibility

Our Bank is committed to the development of public service
and charities, as well as actively fulfills our corporate social
responsibility in such fields in China as environmental protection,

education, arts and culture.

During the “Global Volunteer Month of Morgan Stanley” in
July 2014, employees of our Bank actively participated in various
corporate social responsibility activities. The “Global Volunteer
Month of Morgan Stanley” is a global initiative of Morgan Stanley,
and employees are encouraged to actively participate in charity
activities sponsored by Morgan Stanley. Specific activities of the
“Global Volunteer Month of Morgan Stanley” in 2014 include:

1. Chunmiao Little Flower

Employees in Beijing hosted fund raising activities for
Chunmiao Little Flower during June and July of 2014, raising
a total fund of RMB80,000. On June 14, Morgan Stanley
employees in Beijing joined the athletic meeting of Chunmiao
Little Flower, where Morgan Stanley employees acted as
referees and players to share the funs of sports with children.
Fundraising for Chunmiao Little Flower was the highlight of
the “Global Volunteer Month of Morgan Stanley” in 2014 as

well as the series of Chunmiao Little Flower activities.
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2.  Beijing Children’s Hospital (BCH)

20 Morgan Stanley employees brought books and toys as well
as love and care to BCH for the children there, and played
games, read books and sang songs with them. This is the sixed
time in a row. During June 23 to June 27, Morgan Stanley
volunteers also helped nurses of BCH’s outpatient information
desk give guidance and instruction for patients and their

parents seeking information.

3.  One Heart Gift Bag

This year we are joining the One Heart Gift Bag project again
for which Morgan Stanley provided 180 gift bags for
misfortunate kids in Shangcai County, Henan Province, who
live in the families where at least one of the parents is living
with or has died of HIV/AIDS to mark their Children’s Day
(June 1). These relevant gifts are categorized and arranged by
Morgan Stanley volunteers and finally put in gift bags and

couriered to these kids through post office.

4.  Golden Wings

Morgan Stanley volunteers helped to host art exhibition in
Beijing office and welcomed 5 autism children from Golden
Wings. Volunteers encouraged these kids to show their art and
painting talents, and also wished to help on the recovery

trainings for autism children.
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K T A4 149,117,239.14  204,186,338.02

121

-21-



JEAR PP B AR AT () A R 22 7]

Ao WSHFETHME - 4

3. ¥ri¥E

PRI A R

4. LA2Y et e T HAL AR S v N = 340 s ) < B 7

A oy PE B

- LA ETE

AR FYIEL
VNPT VNPT

300,000,000.00 1,100,841,100.00

AL FHIE
VNCMI b VNCMI b

1,476,793,710.00  665,041,693.23

KA, AT BT 132 B 6 il % 7 3 (B )\ L 12) 758 5 1t < b 55 7 K T A (B
[ 294,000,000.00 (2013 4= 12 A 31 H: JB). BEEESEH R PRI TE B A 250k 1 /4N H

SEZIEER
5. MNAHLE
(DI&AZZ B

FHIRB
ARFET AR
ZSCRVA k-

FERRHN

() B H17R

ISP @ilpS)

- AFTCIRAT R R Ml T

- Prii B

- RGN EER

- LA setrE o & H AR )
TN 24 40 2 ) < B

#if

FARE Y

AR AR

14,681,038.65  26,657,868.95
90,982,917.99  98,148,423.32
(53,799,664.71) (110,125,253.62)

51,864,291.93 14,681,038.65

FAREL FAIER
NIV NIV

158,588.77 287,954.95
2,737,262.40 709,717.06
1,031,333.34 665,000.00

47,937,107.42 13,018,366.64

51,864,291.93 14,681,038.65

-22 -



JEAR PP B AR AT () A R 22 7]

J\S

6.

o 45 T I - 4

RTBGT AR

(L) F A NS A B0 F -

Al BERCRT R

AR
AR

FYIEL

VNCMI b

300,000,000.00 100,000,000.00

Til: DRI R HE S 4,500,000.00 1,000,000.00
K T E 295,500,000.00  99,000,000.00
(2)F% A7 Mb 347 1 0 ) B 55 4 =R
(R Al EREL Eb 51 (%) FEHE Eb 51 (%)
AR Mt AR Mt
fitk N EEN 100,000,000.00 33.34 - -
PRIN4 100,000,000.00 33.33 - -
FH TR 45 AR 45k 100,000,000.00 33.33 100,000,000.00 100.00
&1t 300,000,000.00 100.00 100,000,000.00 100.00
Toh: BRI HER 4,500,000.00 1,000,000.00
QIR AR IER 295,500,000.00 99,000,000.00
) FZ A NIFE M AT T
Hb X 5> A EREL EL151](%) FEHIE EL 151 (%)
AR MIT AR Mt
b X 200,000,000.00 66.67 - -
1B 7R HL X 100,000,000.00 33.33 100,000,000.00 100.00
it 300,000,000.00 100.00 100,000,000.00 100.00
Poh: BEEKIURMERS 4,500,000.00 1,000,000.00
K TET AN 295,500,000.00 99,000,000.00
()R T AR T R
FEARE FEYIEL
14ELIAN 1#E 54 14ERAA 1% 54
(19 (#5%F) 5 4L &il [ERED) (#5%) 54ELL L Hit
ARt AR ARt ARt NI ARG YN PN
{5 FTEK 200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
FRAEBY K 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 - -
it 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
W DR R 4,500,000.00 1,000,000.00
T T A 295,500,000.00 99,000,000.00
123

-23-



JEAR PP B AR AT () A R 22 7]

AN

ot 554020 T - 4

7

e

o]

JRUfE
FAIE
AR
REELE

FAREL
LSS
FAIE
AT PR
REELE
FAREL

{0

IR

JEE
FHIEL
AT

FAREL
LRl
R
AT PR
FARE
EE

FAIE
FAREL

124

NI &

AT

16,953,085.46
657,747.83
(1,258,513.52)

16,352,319.77

14,186,178.17
1,382,519.44
(1,258,513.52)

14,310,184.09

2,766,907.29

2,042,135.68

E74ER
AT

35,305,685.39
581,903.77

35,887,589.16

27,684,048.01
6,444,289.01

34,128,337.02

7,621,637.38

1,759,252.14

-24 -



A R B (o ) 47 B 24
Ao WHEARZETH IE - 4

9. 38 A TSR B3 7 RT3 S 435 97 fot
(1) FSWI S 38 5 P15 A B 7 AT S T 455 0 5

AT I 2 3% SiE AT S B 2
FEREH EYIE FEREH EYIE
ARt ANRFT ARt ANRFT
KR 445 5 Ttk 9,229,497.26 6,771,399.88 2,307,374.32 1,692,849.97
TR =PRSSt ER 23,629,102.66 20,715,382.34 5,907,275.67 5,178,845.59
2T 5y ARl e A FUANME AR B 2,654,310.70 10,589,687.47 663,577.68 2,647,421.87
ait 35,512,910.62 38,076,469.69 8,878,227.67 9,519,117.43
N 2P 4 I 2 3% SiE AT 1R 61 £5
FERE FEYIEL FERE FEYIEL
NG NEEN NG NG
BT Pk AE 1 % 775,990.32 9,993,277.16 193,997.58 2,498,319.29

(2)  AHATHICBIEPTFP B 5 I PR B BT T, LUREUIR . 8]
7 B33 A TS B3 7 RIS SE P A3 B 7 e T

FERE FEH]HL
AR MIT ANRMIT
15 JiE BT A T 8,878,227.67  9,519,117.43
I 9T AT 5B A7 f52 193,997.58  2,498,319.29
X 8,684,230.09  7,020,798.14
10.  HAR#EM~
ERE EHIEL
AR Mt AR Mt
IS G B LA 57 55 28 5 45 5K - 20,161,129.88
TRAT K 2K (1) 951,500.00  14,960,258.35
N1 B 638,295.08 2,243,480.29
T HARIES 1,434,777.90 1,203,376.67
KIS PSR FH (2) 39,267.58 107,673.72
HoAth 316,654.87 705,570.62
&1t 3,380,495.43 39,381,489.53
Jel: SR IR AR HE 2% 3,191.48 11,584.10
K T A7 3,377,303.95  39,369,905.43

(DAFEFAIGR T ZE RIS BN R Ge 5% AT 32 2 R PG RLR A b A B B T

12,078,368.14 ji. B4 XM AR 1,622,735.00 JG.

125

-25-



JEAR PP B AR AT () A R 22 7]

J\S

10.

11.

12.

WS HAR T E B - 5
S - 4

() KI5 9

JF{H
AR
AR HT

FARE
ST

FHIEL

AR

FAREL
i

FHIEL

FAREL

[7i My e Al < R A LAY A7 TS i

AN 252N

Sz H BT g i 51 7 K

AR 0 i o 271 5

AN [ 5E 587 2 2

ANt

12,853,916.48
42,046.00

12,895,962.48

12,746,242.76
110,452.14

12,856,694.90

107,673.72

39,267.58

ARt ARt

4,223.89 4,408.83

EAREL SEYIH
AT AT

294,000,000.00

126

-26 -



AR o 6 BB A (o ) 7 B 6 7
MNo o MSRETH M - 4

13, MR

A
AFES
AR

AR
ISETN
AN P

#rit

14, NATHR L #i

FAREL FAIE
NIV NIV
63,481,297.64  55,627,030.22

1,821.47 6,290.61

984,290,266.67 1,352,159,113.04
4,064,843.55 4,343,966.30

1,051,838,229.33 1,412,136,400.17

AR

I AT AT AR

NEMJT ANE Mt NEMJT NE Mt
T, %4, BEMAKME  7,018,956.80 28,886,823.48 (27,300,651.53)  8,605,128.75
AR N7 40,842.26  2,030,946.09  (2,056,293.19) 15,495.16
7 A% - 924,742.00 (924,742.00) -
WREZmITR (1) 3,5661,359.87  2,045,624.85 (510,661.37)  5,096,323.35
At 10,621,158.93  33,888,136.42  (30,792,348.09) 13,716,947.26

127

-27-



AR o 6 BB A (o ) 7 B 6 7
MNo o MSRETH M - 4

14, NATER T - 2
(1) ®ERZH T

BRIZHLE S0 B BUR HLA B 7 T ER AL S ORBRAR R AN, AERATIR N I TS T 518K/
BIHRAR S A BEE Z st bl o AERATHE B T AR THRL 8% (A ANR T
10,000/ A ) -5 FE A 25200 5 A A C AT 2k I, H 2012 4 1 A 1 Hilg, xFFHRS5% 10
FER T, AEATHIEZ B TRA TR K 12%0R e A AR T 12,000/H) 3%
FEF 2R 5210 J5 B AH S NAS I 28 A R T A5 D2 BRI S BRA a HS2AF, %K
MRS S R TAT R R DL 53 TR S F ik 2 5 F MR, 1B 415 20% E 2 100%.

AARAT T8 R H O BB K IIAR 55 < 1 ) 2 € 52 o S AT AR B VPA, e %
55 HIIUAE LR A 5 B 24 3R 95 RSCAS A I 25 ik 95 B AR 2504 Y v SR A AR T

() B, RSV PR A B E R BT

SEREL SERIEL
Pl 3.6% 4.6%
B TSR 7.0% 7.0%
B8 52 aa v R 3.0% 3.0%

FERBENIEL

Bk L 1 [E 2002 4-2003 4F 7 i 3%
SR 5] 15%
BRI 65

(b) ThANMYSS B P B (¥ ¥ e A2 ad TR e wn T

A E LA RIS

ANRMIT ANRMIT
AR S AR 1,342,000.00 1,607,000.00
BB 52 1 X 55 A2 5% 155,000.00 91,000.00
&1t 1,497,000.00 1,698,000.00

128
-28 -



AR o 6 BB A (o ) 7 B 6 7
MNo o MSRETH M - 4

14, NATER T - 2
(1) eIk -

(€) VBRI T I 52 2 28 ) S T2 G T F

EREL SEHIEL

AR Mt AR Mt
ARVEN TG B E 2 a0 A5 BUE 5,096,323.35 3,561,359.87
TRT 5,096,323.35 3,561,359.87
AT 52 7 A5 = AR ) AU v A 5,096,323.35 3,561,359.87
(d) LA EZ TR B S A an R .

ARIESE A

AR M AR MT
FEHIEL 3,561,359.87 2,220,134.07
TH 24465 25 W08 52 2 A
- AR S AR 1,342,000.00 1,607,000.00
- MR 3R 155,000.00 91,000.00
ﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬁ,,m%c & B E 52 20 A

i BRI (RIS 548,624.85 (593,000.00)

BEZHE%E%IJ (510,661.37) (273,774.20)
LN - 510,000.00
FEARE 5,096,323.35 3,561,359.87

T 2014 4£ 12 A 31 H, AT W EZ w11 XI55 55 1R N 3 4£(2013 4 12 A 31 H:
3H). ARATTHEBAE T —2iHEE NG =t IS AT 4408 A IR 914,000.00 JG.

AARAT X BOE W TR A SR B AR B (T B« i St R A REAT T U E AT, Uy
BT 2 R o B Y s TR S BB AN K

129
-29-



JEAR PP B AR AT () A R 22 7]

J\S

15.

16.

ot 45420 I - 48

I AZ R B

Al BT
B A B
MWNGEE
HAth

it
B8
(AN IR

TR
AEETHREL
AR

FARARHN

(LB 7R

RS AL,
- WAk

- [ R H Al < R L) A TS

- S H [0 g < i 5 7

it

EREL FEAIEL
AR Mot AR Mot
627,535.83 -
1,494,986.50 978,138.78
228,135.99 695,669.66
- 0.01
2,350,658.32  1,673,808.45
EREL FAIEL
AR Mot AR Mot
4,029,234.27  15,897,567.14
30,389,041.25  55,527,594.66
(28,809,809.18)  (67,395,927.53)
5,608,466.34  4,029,234.27
EREL EAIEL
ANE Mt ANE Mt
5535,167.34  4,029,233.89
0.37 0.38
73,298.63 -
5,608,466.34  4,029,234.27

130

-30-



JEAR PP B AR AT () A R 22 7]

J\S

17.

18.

o 45 T I - 4

HoAth 71 451
EREL EHIEL
ARG NG
HABRATE (1) 17,121,702.03  17,347,354.62
Ti4E 2% A 2,351,991.17 2,694,718.31
1 FE YN B 370,974.84 494,084.45
FNRIES - 301,742.88
&1t 19,844,668.04  20,837,900.26
(1) HAth N4 K
TEAREL SERIEL
ARG NG
T e K 3 B 77 A 2R 15,318,229.81  15,318,229.81
HoAh 1,803,472.22 2,029,124.81
&1t 17,121,702.03  17,347,354.62
SRR B AR
AT A AR M 1,000,000,000.00 76, CAEEIN . &G AT BN E &
AN TEBATE
EREL
% LA AR Mt
%
JFERR L PRI [E BrER AT A BR A A 100% 1,000,000,000.00

ERBEABEACE RIEGEEES MRS A RATIR R A IR, 3R T 95 4 (2002)
THABERLS 72 5 A1(2007)fHABER LS 11 S A0 TE 4Rk i o

131
-31-



JEAR PP B AR AT () A R 22 7]

J\S

19.

20.

21.

o 45 T I - 4

BRI

TR
AR

FARARH

HAh,

Bk

L

Al

A

SRR S

LI 5Bl 4 K 2 A 2 Al
Soolrs SR B AR B

(I 2 2 A A B0
IR AR I3 A P A LS M
FEARARH

AARAT HA Zx S W at o008 SEOBT T B ROE 32 an RIS S A B AR B e

AR

FHIRH
AEE(Fe )/t

FARARH

132

A R
ANR Tt ANR Tt
50,069,597.40  50,069,597.40
7,412,841.33 -
57,482,438.73  50,069,597.40
A R
ARt ARt
594,000.00 149,250.00
(411,468.64) 444,750.00
(548,624.85) 593,000.00
137,156.21 (148,250.00)
182,531.36 594,000.00
AASE R
AR Mt AR Mot
21,665,000.00  20,478,000.00
(9,605,000.00)  1,187,000.00
12,060,000.00  21,665,000.00

-32-



JEAR PP B AR AT () A R 22 7]

J\S

22,

23.

ot 45420 I - 48

ARy FEA

IRy BE A

AR FET A (5 17)
ReME AR AR

e (B ) — e AT 4 45 (2)

FEARAR ST BCA

(DI RN

AL AR
ANE Mt ANE Mt
247,627,493.67  265,143,091.31
74,128,41339  (16,328,597.64)
(7,412,841.33) -
9,605,000.00  (1,187,000.00)
323,948,065.73  247,627,493.67

RIEARATERH R, ART H 2007 FITIERFFIZ 10%P05 FETHRER AR, HE

HEHEHFEBITARIIFEANIE,
(2) S — fEe RS v

AR B 2012 46 3 H 30 HIMUAG Y (el v & e v HRE BLIME) (W 42[2012]20 )
BARRIGE IR, ARAT B 2012 FEFF AR A AR B 7 1) 1.5% 1§ — RS #E # o

GAIISSELIUN

GIISTION
- TRV KT
A TR SR AT S0
PR &
-SENIRE R B
LA et fE TR HL AR S TN 2 A0 a8 A <
0 GGk T

it

I3
R 2 At L 7 T 5
BN =
- S5 Hh L 7
A

Nif

ZAIISSELION

133

AR
VNCMI b

48,258.13
6,400,416.98
23,326,123.56
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- 150,000.00
6,166.51 6,106.90
471.60 1,842.80
59,358.42 205,945.78
96,006,910.77  110,816,640.32
324,332.52 624,145.77
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AARAT S H e &£ A 7] JMorgan Stanley. Morgan Stanley & — %7 HE 35 [ ERRz A M )
PRt iR ss A ], HIW SRR 0] DAE LR LA if] -
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JEERR PR BE ) (A8 50) A PR 22 7] SRESEle R SEi RN
FEMR L PHAME B EAR (L) A R A A SRlESH ntis? EIESEIRE/AN
PERR PR 52 (h ) A R ) SRlESH atis? EESEIRE/AN
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FERR L PHF) 577 B 5%
H(F E)E R A A 1,437,423.71 4.73 12,676.74 0.02
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HAth 1,167.94 0.00
&1t 2,304,993.44 7.58 573,853.73 1.03
Fa: 38 S IR
AE B THERITH
Bt ELA51 (%) L Ee 451 (%)
AR M AR M
BERR T H)
A R ] 94,326,385.78 98.25 69,655,445.75 62.86
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL
(CHINA) LIMITED

Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2014

The financial statements and auditors’ report have been issued in Chinese. The English translation is prepared for your
reference only. If there is any conflict of meaning between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version prevails.

158



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

CONTENTS PAGE(S)
AUDITORS’ REPORT 1-2
BALANCE SHEET 3-4
INCOME STATEMENT 5
CASH FLOW STATEMENT 6
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNER'S EQUITY 7
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8 - 60

159



AUDITOR'S REPORT

De Shi Bao (Shen) Zi (15) No.P[]
[Translation]

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Morgan Stanley Bank International
(China) Limited (the "Bank™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2014, and the
income statement, the statement of changes in owner's equity and the cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements.

1. Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements. This responsibility includes: (1) preparing the financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises to achieve fair presentation of the financial
statements; (2) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control that is necessary to
enable the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

2. Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with the Code of Ethics for Chinese Certified Public Accountants, and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider the internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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3. Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Bank present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2014, and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP.

China Certified Public Accountant
Shanghai, China

17 April 2015
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

ASSETS

Balances with the Central Bank

Due from banks

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Interest receivable

Loans and advances to customers

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

162

Note VIII

31/12/2014
RMB

491,898,066.07
149,117,239.14

31/12/2013
RMB

628,729,583.84
204,186,338.02

300,000,000.00 1,100,841,100.00

1,476,793,710.00
51,864,291.93
295,500,000.00
2,042,135.68
1,759,252.14
8,684,230.09
3,377,303.95

665,041,693.23
14,681,038.65
99,000,000.00
2,766,907.29
7,621,637.38
7,020,798.14
39,369,905.43

2,781,036,229.00 2,769,259,001.98

(Continued)



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED
AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Note VIII 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions 11 4,223.89 4,408.83
Repurchase agreements 12 294,000,000.00 -
Customer deposits 13 1,051,838,229.33 1,412,136,400.17
Employee benefit payable 14 13,716,947.26  10,621,158.93
Current tax payable 15 2,350,658.32 1,673,808.45
Interest payable 16 5,608,466.34 4,029,234.27
Other liabilities 17 19,844,668.04  20,837,900.26
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,387,363,193.18 1,449,302,910.91
OWNER'S EQUITY
Paid-in capital 18 1,000,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00
Surplus reserves 19 57,482,438.73 50,069,597.40
Other comprehensive income 20 182,531.36 594,000.00
General reserves 21 12,060,000.00  21,665,000.00
Retained earnings 22 323,948,065.73  247,627,493.67
TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY 1,393,673,035.82 1,319,956,091.07
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY 2,781,036,229.00 2,769,259,001.98

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 3 to 60 were signed by the following:

Head of the Bank Head of Finance Department
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Note VIII 2014 2013
RMB RMB
Operating income 176,415,120.56 98,517,253.62
Net interest income 23 60,593,876.74  42,620,828.66
Interest income 23 90,982,917.99 98,148,423.32
Interest expenses 23 30,389,041.25 55,527,594.66
Net fee and commission income 24 95,073,175.40 109,677,935.28
Fee and commission income 24 96,006,910.77 110,816,640.32
Fee and commission expenses 24 933,735.37 1,138,705.04
Investment income/ (losses) 25 9,661,465.00 (38,182,336.00)
Gain/ (losses) from changes in fair value 26 7,935,376.77  (19,483,706.77)
Exchange gain/ (losses) 3,151,226.65 (15,020,995.29)
Other operating income 27 - 18,905,527.74
Operating expenses 77,785,437.12 79,713,773.31
Business tax and surcharges 28 9,529,451.97 7,902,855.34
Operating expenses 29 65,051,353.85 77,890,030.92
Impairment loss/ (reversal) 30 3,204,631.30 (6,079,112.95)
Operating profit 08,629,683.44 18,803,480.31
Add: Non-operating income 31 286,491.58 954,395.33
Less: Non-operating expenses 32 104.03  31,657,135.00
PROFIT/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 98,916,070.99  (11,899,259.36)
Less: Income tax expenses 33 24,787,657.60 4,429,338.28
NET PROFIT/ (LOSS) 74,128,413.39  (16,328,597.64)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ INCOME,
NET OF INCOME TAX 20 (411,468.64) 444,750.00
Included: Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (411,468.64) 444,750.00

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (LOSS) 73,716,944.75  (15,883,847.64)

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Note VIII

Cash flow from operating activities
Net decrease in balances with the Central Bank and due from banks
Net decrease in loans and advances to customers
Net decrease in due from banks,
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Net increase in repurchase agreements
Interest, fee and commission received
Other cash received relating to operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

Net increase in loans and advances to customers
Net decrease in customer deposits,

due to banks and other financial institutions
Net decrease in placements from banks

and other financial institutions
Net increase in placements with banks and other financial institutions
Net decrease in repurchase agreements
Interest, fee and commission paid
Cash paid to and for employees
Tax payments
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

2014 2013

RMB RMB
68,401,577.44 146,527,008.75
- 494,282,500.00
- 179,373,413.35

294,000,000.00 -

135,845,292.22 159,452,357.11
35,179,918.72 1,165,615.35
533,426,788.38 980,800,894.56

200,000,000.00 -

360,298,355.78

190,612,400.00
29,743,544.55
30,792,348.09
34,734,001.76
24,375,545.19

377,425,430.88
160,280,250.00

392,000,000.00
68,534,632.57
29,877,765.51
35,999,355.98
49,970,084.47

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities

870,556,195.37

1,114,087,519.41

Net cash flow from operating activities 35 (337,129,406.99) (133,286,624.85)
Cash flow from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investments 12,612,018,850.00 10,372,826,850.12
Investment income received 23,668,676.86 19,180,490.02
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets - 18,694,307.72
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities 12,635,687,526.86  10,410,701,647.86
Cash paid to purchase fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets 1,281,697.60 77,454.61
Cash paid to purchase investments 13,415,835,490.00  9,749,253,730.00

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

13,417,117,187.60

9,749,331,184.61

Net cash flow from investing activities (781,429,660.74) 661,370,463.25
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3,323,796.98 (9,761,073.57)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,115,235,270.75) 518,322,764.83
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 34 1,573,816,988.06  1,055,494,223.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 34 458,581,717.31  1,573,816,988.06

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNER’S EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

|. Balance as at 31 December 2013
and 1 January 2014
I1. Current year movement
(1) Total comprehensive income
(1) Distribution of profit
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general reserves

111. Balance as at 31 December 2014

|. Balance asat 31 December 2012
and 1 January 2013
I1. Current year movement
(1) Total comprehensive income
(I1) Distribution of profit
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves
2. Appropriation to general reserves

111. Balance as at 31 December 2013

2014
Other comprehensive
Paid-in capital Surplus reserves  General reserves income Retained earnings Total owner’s equity
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
(Note V111, 18) (Note V111, 19) (Note V111, 21) (Note V111, 20) (Note V111, 22)
1,000,000,000.00 50,069,597.40 21,665,000.00 594,000.00 247,627,493.67 1,319,956,091.07
- 7,412,841.33 (9,605,000.00) (411,468.64) 76,320,572.06 73,716,944.75
- - (411,468.64) 74,128,413.39 73,716,944.75
7,412,841.33 (9,605,000.00) - 2,192,158.67 -
7,412,841.33 - - (7,412,841.33)
- (9,605,000.00) 9,605,000.00
1,000,000,000.00 57,482,438.73 12,060,000.00 182,531.36 323,948,065.73 1,393,673,035.82
2013
Other comprehensive
Paid-in capital Surplus reserves  General reserves income Retained earnings ~ Total owner’s equity
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
(Note VIII, 18) (Note VIII, 19) (Note VIII, 21) (Note VIII, 20) (Note VIII, 22)
1,000,000,000.00 50,069,597.40 20,478,000.00 149,250.00 265,143,091.31 1,335,839,938.71
- - 1,187,000.00 444,750.00 (17,515,597.64) (15,883,847.64)
- - 444,750.00 (16,328,597.64) (15,883,847.64)
- 1,187,000.00 - (1,187,000.00) -
- 1,187,000.00 (1,187,000.00)
1,000,000,000.00 50,069,597.40 21,665,000.00 594,000.00 247,627,493.67 1,319,956,091.07

The accompanying notes are part of the financial statements.
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

GENERAL

Morgan Stanley Bank International (China) Limited (the “Bank”), formerly known as Nan Tung
Bank Ltd., Zhuhai, was established by Nan Tung Investment (Macao) Limited which is
wholly-owned by Bank of China Macau Branch. The Bank was approved by the People’s Bank of
China ( “PBOC?”) to establish on 19 October 1984 and obtain its business license on 14 December
1984 .

With the approval from the China Banking Regulatory Commission ( “CBRC”) on 8 September
2006, Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited (“MSBIL”) acquired 100% equity interest of
the Bank from Nan Tung Investment (Macao) Limited. The Bank renewed the obtained business
license after the change of shareholder. As of 31 December 2014, the Bank's registered capital is
RMB 1 billion, including RMB 820,284,000.00 for RMB business and Hong Kong Dollars
(“HKD”) equivalent of RMB 179,716,000.00 for foreign currency business. The Bank’s parent
company is Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited, and the ultimate parent company of the
Bank is Morgan Stanley. Details of capital contribution by the investor are described in Note VIII,
18.

The Bank was approved by CBRC on 10 June 2009 to establish a branch in Beijing and obtained
a branch business license on 24 June 2009.

The registered address of the Bank is Room 2801-2807 and Room 2816, 28/F, Yuecai Building
No0.188 Jingshan Road, Jida, Zhuhai, Guangdong, People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The Bank
is formed as a limited liability company.

The Bank is permitted to provide the following services to various customers for foreign currency
business and to customers except for China citizens in the territory of China for RMB business:
accepting public deposits; providing short-term, medium and long-term loans; undertaking
acceptance and discounting of negotiable instruments; purchasing and selling government bonds,
financial bonds, and other foreign currency securities except for shares; providing letters of credit
(L/C) service and guarantee; conducting domestic and international settlements; buying and
selling foreign currency for its own accounts or as agents; inter-bank borrowing and lending;
providing bank card service; providing safety box service; providing credit investigation and
consultancy service; and other businesses approved by CBRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bank has adopted the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“CASs”) issued by the
Ministry of Finance (“MOF”).

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS
ENTERPRISES

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with CASs, and present

truly and completely, the Bank's financial position as of 31 December 2014, and results of
operations and cash flows for the year then ended.
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V.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The following significant accounting policies and accounting estimates are determined in
accordance with the CASs.

Accounting year

The Bank has adopted the calendar year as its accounting year, i.e. from 1 January to 31
December.

Functional currency

The Bank's functional currency is RMB, the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Bank operates. The reporting currency of the financial statements is RMB.

Basis of accounting and principle of measurement

The Bank has adopted the accrual basis of accounting. Except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value, the Bank has adopted the historical cost model as the principle
of measurement of the financial statements. Where assets are impaired, provisions for asset
impairment are accrued in accordance with relevant requirements.

Under historical cost model, the assets are initially recognized at the amount of cash and cash
equivalents paid or fair value of other consideration given to acquire an asset. The liabilities are
measured at the amount of asset or cash received bearing the present obligation or contractual
amount of present obligation or amount of cash or cash equivalents expected to pay to settle the
liability in daily activities.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are determined on aforementioned basis, regardless of
whether it is directly observable or estimated using valuation technique.

The fair value measurement is categorized into 3 levels based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Bank has the ability to access at the measurement date.

- Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and the deposits which can be paid on demand. Cash equivalents are

short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Financial instruments

The Bank recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when the Bank becomes a party to
the contract of the financial instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognized at fair value. For financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), related transaction costs are charged to the profit or loss for the
current period; for financial assets and financial liabilities classified as other categories, related
transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amounts.

5.1 The effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period, using the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates the future cash flows considering
all contractual terms of financial assets and financial liabilities (without considering future credit
losses). The calculation includes all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate i.e. transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts etc.

5.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

On initial recognition, financial assets are classified into the following categories: FVTPL,
‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘loans and receivables’ and ‘available-for-sale’ (*AFS”) financial
assets. For a financial asset traded in regular way, the Bank recognises and derecognises the
financial asset using trade date accounting.

The Bank’s financial assets classified as financial assets at FVTPL, and loans and receivables.
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL. The Bank's financial assets at FVTPL is held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: (1) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or (2) it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or (3) it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a designated and
effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument (without a quoted price from an
active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value as well as dividends and interest income related to such financial assets
recognised in profit or loss for the current period.
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

V.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

5.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets - continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables of the Bank include balances with
PBOC, due from banks, placements with banks and other financial institutions, loans and
advances to customers, interest receivable and security deposits etc.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains or losses arising from derecognition, impairment or amortisation are recognised in
profit or loss for the current period.

5.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses the carrying amount of financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, at each
balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence that financial assets are impaired the Bank
determines the amount of any impairment loss. Objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired refers to one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and
that event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset which can be
reliably estimated.

Objective evidences that financial assets are impaired include evidences arising from the

following events:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

(2) A breach of contract by the borrower, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(3) The lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting a concession to the borrower;

(4) It has become probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

(5) The financial assets discontinue trading in an active market because of financial difficulties of
the issuer;

(6) Upon an overall assessment of a group of financial assets, observable data indicates that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial asset in the group of financial assets. Such observable data includes:

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the Bank;
- adverse changes in industry or country conditions of the borrowers that might affect the
repayment of the Bank of financial assets;

(7) Other objective evidence indicating there is an impairment of a financial asset.
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

V.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

5.3 Impairment of financial assets - continued

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

If financial assets carried at amortised cost are impaired, the carrying amount of the financial
assets shall be reduced to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The amount of reduction shall be recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss. If,
after the recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of financial assets increases and
the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment losses are reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the financial assets at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the Bank conducts the impairment testing
individually. For a financial asset that is not individually significant, the Bank assesses the asset
individually for impairment or includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. For a financial asset that does
not need impairment after individual assessment (include financial assets individually material
and immaterial), the Bank reassesses the asset collectively with a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics for impairment. The financial asset that has impaired in
individual assessment does not need to be included in collectively assessment for impairment with
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics.

5.4 Transfers of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when: 1) the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; or 2) it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the transferee; or 3) it transfers the financial asset,
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership but has not
retained control of the financial asset.

Where the Bank does not either transfer or retain substantially all of the risks and rewards related
to the ownership of a financial asset, and if the Bank does not relinquish control over the financial
asset, it shall, to the extent of its continuous involvement in the financial asset, recognise it as a
related financial asset and recognise the relevant liability accordingly. The term "continuous
involvement in the transferred financial asset” shall refer to the risk level that the Bank faces as a
result of any change in the value of the financial asset.

If the transfer of an entire financial asset satisfies the conditions relating to derecognition, the
difference between the amounts described in the following two items shall be recorded in the
profit or loss for the current period: 1) the carrying amount of the transferred financial asset; and 2)
the sum of the total consideration received from the transfer and the cumulative amount of the
change in the fair value originally recorded in the owner's equity.
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MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

V.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

5.4 Transfers of financial assets - continued

If the transfer of part of a financial asset satisfies the conditions for derecognition, the Bank shall
allocate the carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognise on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts (under such circumstances, the service asset retained shall be deemed to be a
portion of the financial asset which continues to be recognised). And the difference between the
amounts described in the following two items shall be recorded in the profit or loss for the current
period: 1) the carrying amount of the derecognised portion; and 2) the sum of the total
consideration paid for the derecognised portion and the portion of the cumulative amount of
changes in the fair value originally recorded in the owner's equity which corresponds to the
derecognised portion (in the event that the financial asset involved in the transfer is a financial
asset available for sale).

A financial asset which sold with an agreement to repurchase in the near future, the Bank
continues to recognise it in the balance sheet. Proceeds from sales of such assets including the
interest are recognised as financial assets sold under repurchase agreement in the balance sheet.
The difference between selling price and repurchase price at the duration of the agreement is
recognised by the effective interest method as interest expense.

5.5 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

The Bank recognises the issued financial instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments
according to the economic substance of the contractual provisions of the financial instrument
rather than the legal form and the definition of financial liabilities or equity instruments.

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or
‘other financial liabilities’. The Bank's financial liabilities are other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities linked to and which must be settled by delivery of an unquoted
equity instrument (without a quoted price in an active market) whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably are subsequently measured at cost. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method; gains or losses arising from
derecognition or amortisation are recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts between a guarantor and a creditor that when the
debtor defaults, the guarantor should perform agreed obligations. Financial guarantee contracts
that are not designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at the higher of the following two amounts: (1) the amount determined
in accordance with CAS No. 13 — Contingencies; and (2) the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the principles set out in CAS No. 14 -
Revenue.
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V.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Financial instruments - continued

5.6 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability (or part of it) only when the underlying present
obligation (or part of it) is discharged. An agreement between the Bank (an existing borrower) and
an existing lender to replace the original financial liability with a new financial liability with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

When the Bank derecognises a financial liability or a part of it, the Bank recognises the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the financial liability)
derecognised and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or new
financial liabilities assumed) in profit or loss.

5.7 Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if, and
only if, the Bank has a currently enforceable legal right to set off the recognised amounts and
intends to settle on a net basis, or to realize an asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In all
other situations they are presented separately in the balance sheet and are not offset.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for supply of services, or for administrative purposes
and have useful lives more than one accounting year. Fixed assets shall be recognised only when
it is probable that economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the assets can be measured reliably. Fixed assets are initially measured at historical cost.

Subsequent expenditure incurred on a fixed asset is included in the cost of the fixed asset, only if
it is probable that economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Bank and the
relevant cost can be measured reliably. Meanwhile the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. Other subsequent expenditure that fails to meet the capitalization criteria is
recorded to profit or loss when incurred.

Fixed assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives from the month after they are in
available condition for the intended use, applying the straight-line method. The useful lives,
estimated net residual values rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are
as follows:

Estimated Net Annual
Classes Useful Life Residual Value Depreciation Rate
Electronic and office equipment ~ 3-8years - 13%-33%

Estimated net residual value of a fixed asset is the estimated amount that the Bank would
currently obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the
asset were already of the age and in the expected condition at the end of its useful life.
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V.

6.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Fixed assets - continued

The fixed assets shall be derecognised when the asset is on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to be generated from its use or disposal. When fixed assets are sold,
transferred, retired or damaged, the Bank recognises the amount of any proceeds on disposal of
the asset net of the carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the current period.

The Bank reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value of fixed assets and the
depreciation method applied at least at each financial year-end. Any change in the useful life or
estimated net residual value of fixed assets or the depreciation method used is treated as a change
in an accounting estimate.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets of the Bank include software.

An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. An intangible asset with a finite useful life is
amortised using the straight-line method over its useful life when the asset is available for use.
The Bank estimates that the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life of 1-5 years.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the Bank reviews the useful life and amortisation
method at least at each financial year-end and makes adjustments if necessary.

Long-term prepayments

Long-term prepayments are various expenditures incurred but that should be allocated over the
current and future periods of more than one year. Long-term prepayments are evenly amortised
over their respective beneficial period.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

The Bank reviews at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that fixed assets and
intangible assets with finite useful life may be impaired. If any indication of that an asset may be
impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is estimated on the basis of the individual asset. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Bank determines the recoverable
amount of the group of assets to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount of an asset is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the difference between
recoverable amount and carry amount is recognised as an impairment loss and recorded as profit
or loss for the current period.

Once an impairment loss of fixed assets and intangible assets with finite useful life is recognised,
it is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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10.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Employee benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the Bank during an accounting period, the Bank shall
recognise the short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service as a
liability, and as an expense or the cost of an asset. For the employee welfare incurred, the Bank
shall recognise the actual amount of employee welfare as an expense or the cost of an asset when
it occurs. If the employee benefit is non-monetary, it shall be measured at fair value.

For social insurance including medical care, employment injury insurance, maternity insurance
and housing fund, as well as labor union cost and employee training expense, the Bank will
calculate the amount of employee benefit according to defined base and percentage and recognise
as a liability and an expense or the cost of an asset.

The Bank shall recognise the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan, in exchange for
the service rendered by an employee during an accounting period, as a liability and as an expense
or the cost of an asset.

The Bank shall recognise a liability and expense for termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates:

- when the Bank can no longer unilaterally withdraw the offer of those benefits induced from
terminating employment relationship or lay off plan; and

- when the Bank recognises costs for a restructuring and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

For the defined benefit plan, the Bank uses the projected unit credit method to determine the
present value of its defined benefit obligations and attributes the defined benefit obligation to
periods of service according to the formula. The defined benefit cost can be categorized as
follows:

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost and gains and losses on
settlement) in profit or loss;

- net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset (including interest income on plan
assets, interest expense on the defined benefit obligation and interest on the effect of the asset
ceiling) in profit or loss; and

- changes from remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset are recognized as expenses
in current period or as cost of assets. Changes from remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability or asset (including actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset, change in the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset), are
recognized in other comprehensive income.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
General reserves

Pursuant to CAIJIN [2012] No. 20 “Administrative Rules of Provisions for Financial Enterprise”
issued by the MOF and the related regulations on 30 March 2012, the financial institutions should
select the internal model method or standard method according to their actual situation and make
quantitative analysis of exposures in risk assets to determine the potential risk estimate. If the risk
estimate is higher than the impairment of assets, the difference should be recorded as general
reserves, otherwise no provision of general reserves is required. In principle, the general reserves
should not be less than 1.5% of the risk assets.

The Bank provides 1.5% of risk assets balance at the balance sheet date as the general reserves
effective at the end of 2014. The provision of general reserves is considered as the current
distribution of profits and presented separately in the owner's equity.

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are determined at amortised costs of relevant financial assets and
financial liabilities using the effective interest rate, and recognised to profit or loss in the current
period. If the difference between effective interest rate and contract interest rate is small, the
contract interest method is used.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the related services are delivered on an accrual
basis.

Government grants

Government grants are the transfer of monetary assets or non-monetary assets from the
Government to the Bank at no consideration. A government grant is recognised when the Bank
complies with the conditions attaching to the grant and when the Bank is able to receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, the item is measured at the
amount received or receivable.

A government grant which relates to an asset is recognised as deferred income, and evenly
amortised to profit or loss over the useful life of the related asset.

For a government grant which relates to income, if the grant is a compensation for related
expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognised as deferred
income, and recognised in profit or loss over the periods in which the related costs are recognised;
if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses already incurred, the grant is
recognised immediately in profit or loss for the current period.
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15.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued
Income tax
Income tax expenses comprise current tax expense and deferred tax expense.

15.1 Current tax

At the balance sheet date, the current income tax liabilities (or assets) for the current period or
previous periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid (or recoverable) according to the
requirements of tax law.

15.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences arising from the difference between the carrying amount of an asset or
liability and its tax base, or the difference between the tax base and the carrying amount of those
items that are not recognised as assets or liabilities but have a tax base that can be determined
according to tax laws, are recognised as deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities using the
balance sheet liability method.

The Bank recognises a deferred tax asset for the carry forward of unused deductible losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
according to the requirements of tax laws.

Current income tax and deferred tax is recognised in current year profit and loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equity, in which
case the current tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income or equity.

At the balance sheet date, the Bank reviews the carrying amount of any deferred tax asset. If it is
probable that sufficient taxable profits will not be available in future periods to allow the benefit
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized, the carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reduced.
Any such reduction in amount is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

15.3 Tax asset and tax liability offset

When the Bank has a legal right to offset the recognised amounts and intends to either settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, tax asset and tax liability of
current period are offset and the net amount is presented on the balance sheet.

When the Bank has a legal right to offset the current income tax assets and current income tax
liabilities, the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity, or different taxable entities which
intend to either settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, are reported on a net basis.
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16.

17.

18.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Translation of transactions denominated in foreign currencies

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated by applying the spot exchange
rate at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional
currency at the spot exchange rate of the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from
the differences between the spot exchange rate of the balance sheet date and the exchange rates
used on initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss for
the current period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are carried at historical cost
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; non-monetary assets and liabilities
carried at fair value and denominated in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Differences between the translated amount at
functional currency and the original amount at functional currency are accounted for as changes in
fair value (including changes in exchange rates) in profit or loss for the period.

Leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred. An operating lease is a

lease other than a finance lease.

The Bank records operating lease as |essee

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term to the cost of the assets or to profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred. The
initial expenses are recorded as profit or loss when incurred. Contingent rents are charged to profit
or loss in the period in which they are actually incurred.

Fiduciary assets

The Bank provides fiduciary services to grant loans to the borrowers and collect the repayments
on behalf of the Bank’s clients. The fund is entrusted and the condition of credit, including the
usage of loan, the principle and the interest rates, are designated by the client. The risk of the
fiduciary loan is taken by the client, the Bank charges commission only for agency activities.
Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not reported in the Bank’s balance sheet.
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BASIS OF DETERMINING SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY
ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the application of the Bank’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 1V, the Bank is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of items in
the financial statements that cannot be measured accurately. These judgments, estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience of the Bank's management as well as other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The aforementioned judgements, estimates and assumptions are reviewed regularly on a going
concern basis. The effect of a change in accounting estimate is recognised in the period of the
change, if the change affects that period only; or recognised in the period of the change and future
periods, if the change affects both current and future periods.

Key assumptions and uncertainties in accounting estimates

Fair value of financial instruments

For the financial instrument without active trading market, the Bank determines its fair value by
various valuation techniques. The valuation techniques that the Bank adopts include discounted
cash flow model. The Bank needs to make estimation such as the credit risks, market volatility
and correlation of itself and counterparties. Any changes in the assumptions made will impact the
fair values of the financial instruments.

Impairment |osses of loans and advances

Besides the loan loss provision provided before each quarter-end, the Bank reviews its loan
portfolios to assess impairment on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be provided, the Bank makes judgments as to whether there is any objective evidence that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from loan portfolios if there is no
such decrease identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. The objective evidence may
include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a Bank (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the Bank. The Bank uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Income tax

There are a number of transactions for which the final tax determination and calculation is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business operation. In particular, the deductibility of
certain items is subjected to government approval. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amount that was initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period during which such a determination is made.
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VI.

BASIS OF DETERMINING SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY
ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES - continued

Key assumptions and uncertainties in accounting estimates - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the assets are realized or the liabilities are settled, according to the requirements of
tax laws. Within the limit of sufficient available taxable profits against which the loss can be
deductible, the Bank recognises deferred tax assets against the deductible losses. This requires
management judgment to estimate the time of taxable profits and appropriate tax rate to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Amortisation period of intangible assets

For intangible assets with finite useful life, the Bank estimates the period over which future
economic benefits attributable to the asset will be flowed to the Bank, and amortises the
intangible assets over the estimated period.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Bank applied new CAS No0.39 - Fair Value Measurement, CAS No0.40 - Joint Arrangements,
CAS No.41- Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and revised CAS No.2 - Long-term Equity
Investment, CAS No.9 - Employee Benefits, CAS No0.30 - Presentation of Financial Statements,
CAS No.33 - Consolidated Financial Statements, which were issued by the MOF in 2014, since 1
July 2014. The Bank also adopted revised CAS No.37 - Presentation of Financial Instruments in
the Bank's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014. The assessment made by
the Bank’s management on new accounting standards applicable to the financial statements are as
follows:

Employee benefits

Before the application of revised CAS No.9 - Employee Benefits, the Bank adopted the projected
unit credit method, in an actuarial basis and using a discount rate by reference to high quality
bond yield, to determine defined benefit liabilities. The current service cost, past service cost and
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability were recognised in profit or loss and actuarial
gain and loss was recognised in other comprehensive income.

After the application of revised CAS No.9 - Employee Benefits, the accounting policy of defined
benefit plan has been described in Note IV, 10. According to the Bank's assessment, the
application of revised CAS No.9 - Employee Benefits does not have a material impact on the
Bank's financial statements.Presentation of Financial Instruments

Presentation of financial instruments

The amendments to CAS No.37 - Presentation of Financial Instruments clarify rules and require
more disclosure relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities, add disclosure
requirement of financial assets transfer, revise disclosure requirement of maturity analysis of
financial assets and financial liabilities. The financial statements have been presented in
accordance with this revised standard and comparative figures have been restated accordingly.
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VII.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIIES - continued
Presentation of financial statements

The revised CAS No0.30 - Presentation of Financial Statements requires other comprehensive
income to be presented by two categories: (1) other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; (2) other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Besides, the revised
standard also introduces requirements of presentation of held-for-sale items. The financial
statements have been presented according to this revised standard and comparative figures have
been restated accordingly.

Fair value measurement

CAS 39 - Fair Value Measurement establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurement and disclosure about fair value measurements. The application of CAS39 - Fair
Value Measurement does not have material impact on financial statements but result in broader
disclosures of fair value information. The financial statements have been presented according to
this standard.

According to the Bank's assessment, the application of CAS No0.40 - Joint Arrangements, CAS
No.41- Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, revised CAS No.2 - Long-term Equity Investment
and CAS No0.33 - Consolidated Financial Statements does not have a material impact on the
Bank's financial statements.

TAXATION

Income tax

The applicable tax rate for year 2014 is 25% (2013:25%). The Branch of the Bank implements the
management method of income tax collection in terms of unified calculation, hierarchical
management, local prepaid, unitary liquidation and fiscal adjustment in accordance with “The
Temporary Measurement of Corporate Income Tax Allocation and Budget Management for
Multiple Provinces and Cities”. (Cai Yu [2012] No0.40) and “The Management Methodology of
Cross-regional Operating Corporate Income Tax Collection Unitarily for Cross-regional
Operation Enterprise” (Guo Fa [2012] No. 57).

181
.22



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

VII.

VIII.

TAXATION - continued

Business tax
The business tax rate is 5%.
Other tax

Urban Maintenance and Construction Tax is 7% of business tax.

Education Surcharge is 3% of business tax, while Local Education Surcharge is 2% of business
tax.

According to The Circular issued by Zhuhai Municipal Government (Yue Di Shui Fa[2013] No.
119), the Zhuhai Head Office is obliged to pay Embankment Maintenance Fee at the rate of 0.08%
on revenue that is subject to business tax in the first quarter of 2014 and at the rate 0.072% on
revenue that is subject to business tax for the second to fourth quarter of 2014.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES

BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Statutory reserves with the Central Bank 183,154,406.10  251,555,983.54
Other deposits with the Central Bank 308,743,659.97  377,173,600.30

491,898,066.07  628,729,583.84

Statutory reserves are placed according to the relevant regulations promulgated by the PBOC. In
accordance with “Notice on Raising Reserve Rate for Foreign Currency Deposits Issued by the
People’s Bank of China” [YinFa (2007) No.134], reserve rate for all foreign currency deposits of
financial institutions was adjusted to 5% effective 15 May 2007. Statutory reserve for foreign
currency business is deposited at 5% of the month-end balances of the relevant deposit items and
is non-interest bearing. The PBOC reserve rate for all RMB deposits of financial institutions was
18% on 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014. The statutory reserves for RMB business is
deposited at 18% of the RMB deposits balance at the end of every ten days. The statutory reserve
for RMB business is interest bearing at 1.62%.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

DUE FROM BANKS

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Due from domestic banks 5,710,562.58 4,564,219.52
Due from overseas banks 144,127,494.76  200,625,668.24
Total 149,838,057.34  205,189,887.76
Less: Provision of impairment of due from banks 720,818.20 1,003,549.74
Net book value 149,117,239.14  204,186,338.02

PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Placements with domestic financial institutions 300,000,000.00 1,100,841,100.00

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Financial assets held for trading
- Financial institution bonds 1,476,793,710.00 665,041,693.23

As of balance sheet date, the carrying amount of financial assets held for trading pledged for
repurchase agreements (Note VIII, 12) was RMB294,000,000 (31/12/2013: Nil). The repurchase
agreements were to be matured in 1 month after the agreements took effective.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
INTEREST RECEIVABLE

(1) Movement in interest receivable is as follows:

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Received during the year

Closing balance

(2) Categorized by nature is as follows:

Interest receivable from
- Balances with the Central Bank and due from banks
- Placements with banks and other financial institutions
- Loans and advances to customers
- Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Total

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(1) Categorized by nature is as follows:

Corporate loans and advances
Less: Loan loss provision

Net book value

184

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
14,681,038.65  26,657,868.95
90,982,917.99  98,148,423.32
(53,799,664.71) (110,125,253.62)
51,864,291.93  14,681,038.65
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
158,588.77 287,954.95
2,737,262.40 709,717.06
1,031,333.34 665,000.00
47,937,107.42  13,018,366.64
51,864,291.93  14,681,038.65
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
300,000,000.00  100,000,000.00
4,500,000.00  1,000,000.00
295,500,000.00  99,000,000.00
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VIII.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS - continued

(2) Categorized by industry are as follows:

Wholesale and retail

Metals mining

Leasing and commercial service

Total

Less: Loan loss provision

Net book value

Northern China
Eastern China

Total

Less: Loan loss provision

Net book value

31/12/2014 Proportion 31/12/2013 Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
100,000,000.00 33.34 - -
100,000,000.00 33.33 - -
100,000,000.00 33.33 100,000,000.00 100.00
300,000,000.00 100.00 100,000,000.00 100.00
4,500,000.00 1,000,000.00
295,500,000.00 99,000,000.00
(3) Categorized by registered location of the borrowers are as follows:
31/12/2014 Proportion 31/12/2013 Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
200,000,000.00 66.67 - -
100,000,000.00 33.33 100,000,000.00 100.00
300,000,000.00 100.00 100,000,000.00 100.00
4,500,000.00 1,000,000.00
295,500,000.00 99,000,000.00
(4) Categorized by contract agreement terms and guarantee pattern are as follows:
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Within a year 1 year to 5 years Within a year 1 year to 5 years
(including 1year) ~ (including 5 years) Over 5 years Total (including 1year) (including 5 years)  Over 5 years Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

Clean loans
Pledged loans

Total
Less: Loan loss provision

Net book value

200,000,000.00
100,000,000.00

200,000,000.00
100,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

100,000,000.00

100,000,000.00
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4,500,000.00

295,500,000.00

1,000,000.00

99,000,000.00
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

FIXED ASSETS

Cost
Opening balance
Addition during the year
Disposal during the year

Closing balance

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance
Charge for the year
Disposal during the year

Closing balance

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
Opening balance
Addition during the year

Closing balance
Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance
Charge for the year

Closing balance

Net book value
Opening balance

Closing balance

Electronic and office equipment

RMB

16,953,085.46
657,747.83
(1,258,513.52)

16,352,319.77

14,186,178.17
1,382,519.44
(1,258,513.52)

14,310,184.09

2,766,907.29

2,042,135.68

Software
RMB

35,305,685.39
581,903.77

35,887,589.16

27,684,048.01
6,444,289.01

34,128,337.02

7,621,637.38

1,759,252.14
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VIII.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(1) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed in gross as follows:

Deductible temporary differences Deferred tax assets
31/12/2014 31/12/2013 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB RMB RMB

Long-term service benefit & employee

benefit 9,229,497.26 6,771,399.88 2,307,374.32 1,692,849.97
Intangible asset amortisation

difference between tax and

accounting 23,629,102.66 20,715,382.34 5,907,275.67 5,178,845.59
Change in fair value of
financial assets held for trading 2,654,310.70 10,589,687.47 663,577.68 2,647,421.87
Total 35,512,910.62 38,076,469.69 8,878,227.67 9,519,117.43
Taxable temporary differences Deferred tax liabilities
31/12/2014 31/12/2013 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB RMB RMB
Impairment on financial assets 775,990.32 9,993,277.16 193,997.58 2,498,319.29

(2) The Bank nets off deferred tax assets and liabilities and presents in net basis as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Deferred tax assets 8,878,227.67 9,519,117.43
Deferred tax liabilities 193,997.58 2,498,319.29
Net total 8,684,230.09 7,020,798.14
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VIII. FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

10. OTHER ASSETS

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Bond trading receivables - 20,161,129.88
Prepaid expenses (1) 951,500.00 14,960,258.35
Consulting fee receivables 638,295.08 2,243,480.29
Security deposits 1,434,777.90 1,203,376.67
Long-term prepayments (2) 39,267.58 107,673.72
Others 316,654.87 705,570.62
Total 3,380,495.43 39,381,489.53
Less: Provision of losses of receivables 3,191.48 11,584.10
Net book value 3,377,303.95 39,369,905.43

(1) As at 31 December 2014, prepaid expenses mainly represent prepaid computer system
expense. As at 31 December 2013, prepaid expenses mainly included prepaid income taxes of
RMB12,078,368.14, business tax and surcharges of RMB1,622,735.00.

(2) Long-term prepayments

Leasehold improvement

RMB

Cost

Opening and closing balance 12,853,916.48

Addition 42,046.00

Closing balance 12,895,962.48
Amortisation

Opening balance 12,746,242.76

Charge for the year 110,452.14

Closing balance 12,856,694.90
Net book value

Opening balance 107,673.72

Closing balance 39,267.58
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11.

12.

13.

14.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

DUE TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Due to domestic financial institutions

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Categorized by collateral:

Bonds

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Current deposits
Corporate
Individual

Time deposits
Corporate
Individual

Total

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAYABLE

Salaries, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies

Social security contributions

Housing

Defined benefit plan (1)

Total

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
4,223.89 4,408.83
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
294,000,000.00 -
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
63,481,297.64 55,627,030.22
1,821.47 6,290.61

984,290,266.67 1,352,159,113.04
4,064,843.55

4,343,966.30

1,051,838,229.33 1,412,136,400.17

Accruals Payments
1/1/2014 for the year for the year 31/12/2014

RMB RMB RMB RMB
7,018,956.80 28,886,823.48 (27,300,651.53) 8,605,128.75
40,842.26 2,030,946.09 (2,056,293.19) 15,495.16

- 924,742.00 (924,742.00) -

3,561,359.87 2,045,624.85 (510,661.37) 5,096,323.35
10,621,158.93 33,888,136.42 (30,792,348.09)  13,716,947.26

189

-30-



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

VIII.

14.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAYABLE - continued

(1) Defined benefit plan (“DBP”)

The Bank provides DBP related to retirement and termination for the Bank’s employees in
addition to the government retirement plan. Monthly contributions of the plan are accrued
based on base salary with contribution rate of 8% (subject to a maximum of RMB10,000 of
employer’s provision per month). Effective 1 January 2012, for employees who have over 10
years of services, the above contributions of the plan are accrued based on base salary with
contribution rate of 12% (subject to a maximum of RMB12,000 of employer’s provision per
month). The plan benefits are equal to the accrued contributions plus interest and are payable
upon the retirement or the resignation of the employees. Vesting percentage will have a 20%
increase for each full year of firm services, until 100% for 5 full years of firm services.

The Bank evaluates the present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation on an actuarial
basis. The present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation, current service cost and past
service cost are all measured at projected unit credit method.

(@) The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Discount rate 3.6% 4.6%
Expected growth rate of salaries 7.0% 7.0%
Interest rate of defined benefit plan 3.0% 3.0%

31/12/2014 and 31/12/2013

Mortality rate China Life Table 2002-2003
Termination rate 15%
Retirement age 65

(b) The amounts recognised in operating expenses in respect of DBP are as follows:

2014 2013

RMB RMB
Current service cost 1,342,000.00 1,607,000.00
Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 155,000.00 91,000.00
Total 1,497,000.00 1,698,000.00
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14.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PAYABLE - continued

(1) Defined benefit plan (“DBP”) - continued

(c) DBP obligation included in employee benefit payable as followings:

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation

Net liability

Retirement benefit obligation

(d) Movements in net liability of DBP were as follows:

Opening

Defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss
-Current service cost

-Interest cost

Defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income

-Actuarial losses/ (gains)
Benefits paid
Transfer in

Closing

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
5096,323.35  3,561,359.87
5006,323.35  3,561,359.87
5096,323.35  3,561,359.87
2014 2013
RMB RMB
3,561,359.87  2,220,134.07
1,342,000.00  1,607,000.00
155,000.00 91,000.00
548,624.85 (593,000.00)
(510,661.37) (273,774.20)
- 510,000.00
5096,323.35  3,561,359.87

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31 December 2014 was 3 years (31/12/2013:
3 years). The Bank expects to make a contribution of RMB914,000.00 to the DBP during the

next financial year .

The Bank conducted a sensitivity analysis on key assumptions of DBP (discount rate, growth
rate of salaries and etc.), the result of sensitivity analysis indicated that the key assumptions
had no significant impact on the present value of DBP obligation.
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15.

16.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

CURRENT TAX PAYABLE

Corporate income tax
Business tax and surcharge
Individual income tax
Others

Total

INTEREST PAYABLE

(1) Movement in interest payable is as follows:

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Payment during the year

Closing balance

(2) Categorized by nature is as follows:

Interest payable
- Customer deposits
- Due to banks and other financial institutions
- Repurchase agreements

Total
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31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
627,535.83 -
1,494,986.50 978,138.78

228,135.99 695,669.66
- 0.01
2.350,658.32  1,673,808.45
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
4,029,234.27  15,897,567.14
30,389,041.25  55,527,594.66
(28,809,809.18)  (67,395,927.53)
5,608,466.34  4,029,234.27
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
5535,167.34  4,029,233.89
0.37 0.38
73,298.63 -
5,608,466.34  4,029,234.27
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VIII. FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
17. OTHER LIABILITIES
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Other payables (1) 17,121,702.03 17,347,354.62
Accrued expenses 2,351,991.17 2,694,718.31
Deferred income 370,974.84 494,084.45
Security deposits - 301,742.88
Total 19,844,668.04 20,837,900.26
(1) Other payables
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Payable for long-term assets purchases 15,318,229.81 15,318,229.81
Others 1,803,472.22 2,029,124.81
Total 17,121,702.03 17,347,354.62

18. PAID-IN CAPITAL

The registered capital of the Bank is RMB 1,000,000,000.00, which has been fully paid up.
Details of capital contributions from the investor according to the Bank's Articles of Association
are as follows:
31/12/2014&31/12/2013
Registered Currency  Proportion Amount

Morgan Stanley Bank International RMB 100% 1,000,000,000.00
Limited

The paid-in capital has been verified by Guangdong HengXin DeLv CPA firm with the capital
verification reports of HengDe Zhu Yan No.72 (2002) and HengDe Zhu Yan No.11 (2007)
respectively.

19. SURPLUS RESERVES

2014 2013
RMB RMB

Opening balance
Addition during the year

50,069,597.40 50,069,597.40
7,412,841.33 -

57,482,438.73 50,069,597.40

Closing balance
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21.

22,

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2014 2013
RMB RMB
Opening balance 594,000.00 149,250.00
Movement during the year (411,468.64) 444,750.00
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Included: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
before income tax (548,624.85) 593,000.00
Deferred tax effect of the changes 137,156.21 (148,250.00)
Closing balance 182,531.36 594,000.00

The other comprehensive income only comprised of changes from remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation.

GENERAL RESERVES

2014 2013

RMB RMB
Opening balance 21,665,000.00 20,478,000.00
(Reversal)/ addition during the year (9,605,000.00) 1,187,000.00
Closing balance 12,060,000.00 21,665,000.00
RETAINED EARNINGS

2014 2013

RMB RMB
Opening balance 247,627,493.67  265,143,091.31
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 74,128,413.39  (16,328,597.64)
Appropriation to surplus reserves (1) (7,412,841.33) -
Reversal/ (appropriation) to general reserves (2) 9,605,000.00 (1,187,000.00)
Closing balance 323,948,065.73  247,627,493.67

(1) Surplus reserves

According to the Board approval, the Bank appropriates 10% of profit after tax to the surplus
reserves since year 2007 for each financial year until the Board amends the distribution policy in
the future.
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23.

24,

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued
RETAINED EARNINGS - continued

(2) General reserves

According to CAIJIN [2012] No. 20 “Administrative Rules of Provisions for Financial Enterprise”
issued by the MOF and the related regulations, the Bank appropriates 1.5% to general reserves

based on total risk assets at the end of year since year 2012.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income
- Due from banks
- Balances with the Central Bank
- Placements with banks and other financial institutions
- Resale agreements
- Financial assets as fair value through profit or loss
- Loans and advances to customers

Subtotal

Interest expenses
- Due to banks and other financial institutions
- Placements from banks and other financial institutions
- Repurchase agreements
- Customer deposits

Subtotal

Net interest income

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
-Consulting fee
-Arrangement fee for syndicated loans
-Entrusted loans
-Settlement and clearing fee
-Fees related to credit business
-Others

Subtotal

Fee and commission expenses
-Trading center expenses
-Other fee expenses

Subtotal

Net fee and commission income
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2014 2013
RMB RMB
48,258.13 88,378.10
6,400,416.98  8,118,670.29
23,326,123.56  18,501,249.93
712.33 -
48,925,240.31  54,038,171.92
12,282,166.68  17,401,953.08
90,982,917.99  98,148,423.32
1226  1,172,543.04
138,05556  1,193,454.76
4,986,364.44  9,963,357.37
25,264,608.99  43,198,239.49
30,389,041.25  55,527,594.66
60,593,876.74  42,620,828.66
2014 2013
RMB RMB
94,326,385.78  91,055,445.75
1,614528.46  19,397,299.09
- 150,000.00
6,166.51 6,106.90
471.60 1,842.80
59,358.42 205,945.78
96,006,910.77  110,816,640.32
324,332.52 624,145.77
609,402.85 514,559.27
933,735.37  1,138,705.04
95,073,175.40  109,677,935.28
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25.

26.

27.

28.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

INVESTMENT INCOME/ (LOSSES)

Disposal gains/ (losses) of financial assets held for trading

GAIN/ (LOSSES) FROM CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE

Financial assets held for trading
Investment property

Total

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Investment property rental income
Investment property sale income

Total

BUSINESS TAX AND SURCHARGES

Business tax
Surcharges

Total
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2014 2013
RMB RMB

9,661,465.00  (38,182,336.00)
2014 2013
RMB RMB

7,935,376.77 (631,092.77)

- (18,852,614.00)

7,935376.77  (19,483,706.77)
2014 2013
RMB RMB

- 211,220.02

- 18,694,307.72

- 18,905,527.74
2014 2013
RMB RMB

8,405,638.68  6,950,751.49

1,123,813.29 952,103.85

9,529,451.97  7,902,855.34
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29.

30.

31.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

OPERATING EXPENSES

2014 2013

RMB RMB
Staff salaries and welfare 33,339,511.57 33,223,637.49
Intangible assets amortisation 6,444,289.01 19,637,471.50
Operating lease rentals and utilities expenses 7,032,226.59 6,892,106.60
Electrical equipment maintenance and telecommunication fees 4,226,465.85 4,959,520.32
Travelling expenses 2,642,070.42 2,523,988.71
Depreciation 1,382,519.44 2,111,324.48
Service fees 2,880,000.00 1,480,000.00
Fees to regulators 549,575.75 636,000.00
Entertainment expenses 122,979.77 267,217.86
Long-term prepayments amortisation 110,452.14 142,335.09
Taxes 35,000.00 37,604.34
Others 6,286,263.31 5,978,824.53
Total 65,051,353.85 77,890,030.92
IMPAIRMENT LOSS/ (REVERSAL)

2014 2013

RMB RMB
Impairment loss of loans and advances to customers 3,500,000.00 (4,931,230.00)
Impairment loss of due from banks (286,976.08)  (1,171,233.26)
Impairment loss of receivables (8,392.62) 23,350.31
Total 3,204,631.30 (6,079,112.95)

As of 31 December 2014, the loan loss provision ratio of the Bank is 1.5%. The provision
coverage ratio is not applicable because the Bank has nil non-performing loans.

NON-OPERATING INCOME

2014 2013

RMB RMB
Government subsidies 285,100.00 952,100.00
Others 1,391.58 2,295.33
Total 286,491.58 954,395.33

197

.38.



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

VIII.

32.

33.

34.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

As of 31 December 2013, non-operating expenses included penalties and tax overdue payments.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expenses
Deferred tax expenses

Adjustment for last year income tax

Include: Income tax expenses

Total

Reconciliation of income tax expenses to accounting profits is as follows:

Accounting profit/ (loss)
Tax calculated at tax rate 25%

Add: Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Adjustment for last year income tax

Less: Non-taxable income

Income tax expenses

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with the Central Bank
Statutory reserves
Original maturity within 3 months:
Due from banks
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions

Total
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2014 2013
RMB RMB
26,274,105.08  11,864,179.25
(1,526,275.74)  (7,462,541.63)

39,828.26 27,700.66
39,828.26 27,700.66
24,787,657.60  4,429,338.28
2014 2013
RMB RMB
98,916,070.99  (11,899,259.36)
24,729,017.75  (2,974,814.84)
209,718.80  8,120,898.80
39,828.26 27,700.66
190,907.21 744,446.34
24,787,657.60  4,429,338.28
2014 2013
RMB RMB

491,898,066.07 628,729,583.84
(183,154,406.10) (251,555,983.54)

149,838,057.34 205,189,887.76

- 991,453,500.00

458,581,717.31 1,573,816,988.06
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35.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

CASH FLOW STATEMENT SUPPLEMENTARYINFORMATION

2014 2013
RMB RMB

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities

Net profit/ (loss)

Add: Impairment loss/ (reversal)
Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of long-term prepayments
Gain from sale of investment property
Investment (income)/ loss
Bond interest income
(Gains) / losses from changes in fair value
Deferred tax expenses
(Increase)/ decrease in operating receivables
Decrease in operating payables

Net cash flow from operating activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
Less: Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

Net (decrease)/ increase cash and cash equivalents
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74,128,413.39  (16,328,597.64)
3,204,631.30  (6,079,112.95)
1,382,519.44  2,111,324.48
6,444,280.01  19,637,471.50
110,452.14 142,335.09

- (18,694,307.72)
(9,661,465.00)  38,182,336.00
(48,925,952.64) (54,038,171.92)
(7,935,376.77)  19,483,706.77
(1,526,275.74)  (7,462,541.63)
(293,421,556.15) 827,386,360.52
(60,929,085.97) (937,627,427.35)

(337,129,406.99) (133,286,624.85)

458,581,717.31 1,573,816,988.06
1,573,816,988.06 1,055,494,223.23

(1,115,235,270.75) 518,322,764.83
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36.

37.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

In the daily business, the Bank transfers the recognized financial assets to the third party in some
transactions. The financial assets are derecognized if the derecognition conditions satisfied. If the
Bank retains substantially all of the risks and rewards related to the ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the related financial asset will not be derecognised.

Sales and repurchase agreements

Sales and repurchase agreements are transactions in which the Bank sells a financial asset and
simultaneously agrees to repurchase it at a fixed price on a future date. Since the repurchase prices
are fixed, the Bank is still exposed to substantially all the credit risks and market risks and
rewards of those assets sold. These financial assets, which the Bank does not have the ability to
use during the term of the arrangements, are not derecognised from the financial statements but
regarded as collateral for the secured lending. In addition, the Bank recognises a financial liability
for cash received. For all these arrangements, the counterparties have recourse not only to the
transferred financial assets.

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank entered into bonds related repurchase agreements with certain
counterparties. The proceeds from selling bonds are presented as repurchase agreements (Note
VIII, 12). The following table provides a summary of carrying amounts related to transferred
financial assets that are not derecognised and associated liabilities:

2014 2013
RMB RMB
Carrying amount of selling financial assets
- Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 300,210,000.00 -
Carrying amount of related financial liabilities 294,000,000.00 -

SEGMENT INFORMATION

According to the Bank's internal organizational structure, regulatory requirements and internal
reporting system, the Bank's businesses are divided into following reporting segments, which are
based on the Bank's operational location. The Bank's management periodically evaluates
operating results of these segments reporting to determine resources allocation and evaluates
operating results.

Information of segment reporting is disclosed based on the accounting policies and measurement
used when segments report is provided to the management. These measurement bases are
consistent with the accounting policies and measurement used when preparing the financial
statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment report information:

Operating income

Net interest income

Include:

Net interest income
between segments

Net fee and

commission income

Net other income

Operating expenses

Operating profit/(losses)

Segment assets

Segment liabilities

Additional information:

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditures

Include: Expenditures on
purchasing fixed assets

Expenditures on purchasing

intangible assets
/long-term assets
Long-term prepayment

Operating income

Net interest income

Include:

Net interest income
between segments

Net fee and

commission income

Net other income

Operating expenses

Operating profit

Segment assets

Segment liabilities

Additional information:

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditures

Include: Expenditures on
purchasing fixed assets

Expenditures on purchasing

intangible assets
/long-term assets

2014

Head Office Beijing Branch Elimination Total

RMB RMB RMB RMB
150,154,654.58 26,260,465.98 - 176,415,120.56
34,616,643.19 25,977,233.55 - 60,593,876.74

812,528.67 (812,528.67) - -
94,793,470.66 279,704.74 - 95,073,175.40
20,744,540.73 3,527.69 - 20,748,068.42
46,172,320.96 31,613,116.16 - 77,785,437.12
103,982,333.62 (5,352,650.18) - 98,629,683.44
2,699,528,555.17 607,897,329.88 526,389,656.05  2,781,036,229.00
1,246,871,465.68 566,881,383.55 426,389,656.05  1,387,363,193.18
7,124,053.85 813,206.74 - 7,937,260.59
1,278,677.60 3,020.00 - 1,281,697.60
654,727.83 3,020.00 - 657,747.83
581,903.77 - - 581,903.77
42,046.00 - - 42,046.00
2013

Head Office Beijing Branch Elimination Total

RMB RMB RMB RMB
61,980,523.47 36,536,730.15 - 98,517,253.62
18,810,271.30 23,810,557.36 - 42,620,828.66

(23,169,316.87) 23,169,316.87 - -
97,083,337.76 12,594,597.52 - 109,677,935.28
(53,913,085.59) 131,575.27 - (53,781,510.32)
44,065,222.19 35,648,551.12 - 79,713,773.31
17,915,301.28 888,179.03 - 18,803,480.31
2,350,824,025.74 795,551,729.78 377,116,753.54  2,769,259,001.98
977,233,714.68 749,185,949.77 277,116,753.54  1,449,302,910.91
20,462,351.73 1,428,779.34 - 21,891,131.07
1,568,679.03 - - 1,568,679.03
77,454.61 - - 77,454.61
1,491,224.42 - - 1,491,224.42
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT NOTES - continued

SEGMENT INFORMATION- continued

(1) External revenue categorized by products or businesses

2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000
Trading - emerging market 128,534 30,983
Fixed income business 47,881 67,534
Total 176,415 08,517
(2) External revenue categorized by regions
2014 2013
RMB'000 RMB'000
Domestic external revenue 81,340 28,878
Overseas external revenue 95,075 69,639
Total 176,415 98,517

(3) Non-current assets categorized by assets locations

The Bank's non-current assets are located in China.

(4) Key client's dependency

The Bank does not have significant dependency relationship with non-related party.

Inter-segment transfers are measured on the basis of actual transaction price for such transfers.
Segment revenue and segment expenses are determined on the basis of actual revenue and

expenses of the segments respectively.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT MATTERS

CREDIT COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEE

31/12/2014
RMB

Letters of guarantee 3,331,400.00

31/12/2013

RMB

3,678,400.00
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IX.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT MATTERS- continued

FIDUCIARY BUSINESS

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Entrusted deposits - 86,000,000.00
Entrusted loans - 86,000,000.00

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank had the following commitments in respect of
non-cancellable operating leases:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
The minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases:
Within one year 5,303 3,771
In the second year 5,231 72
In the third year 3,487 -

Total 14,021 3,843

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS

Related party with controlling relationship

Share holding
Name Place of registration  Principal business Registered capital in the Bank

Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited United Kingdom Financial service ~ GBP340,000,000.00 100%

There is no change of shareholdings in the Bank for Morgan Stanley Bank International Limited.

The Bank’s ultimate parent company is Morgan Stanley, which was incorporated in the State of
Delaware, the United States of America and copies of its financial statements can be obtained
from www.morganstanley.com/investorrelations.
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RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

Other related parties which have transactions with the Bank with no controlling relationship

Name

Morgan Stanley Asia Limited
Morgan Stanley Properties (China) Co., Ltd
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Company Limited
Morgan Stanley Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley Commaodities Trading (China) Limited
Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley Business Consulting (Shanghai) Limited
Morgan Stanley (China) Private Equity Investment
Management Co., Ltd.
Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund Management
Company Limited
Morgan Stanley Huaxin Securities
Company Limited
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (China), Ltd

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd

Place of registration

Hong Kong, China
Beijing, China

Beijing, China

Shanghai, China
Shanghai, China

Shanghai, China

Shanghai, China
Shanghai, China

Hangzhou, China
Shenzhen, China

Shanghai, China
Shanghai, China

Tokyo, Japan

Related party relationship

Subsidiary of the parent group
Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group
Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group
Subsidiary of the parent group

Subsidiary of the parent group

Related party directly or indirectly

controlled by parent group
Related party directly or indirect
controlled by parent group

ly

Subsidiary of investor which has

significant influence over the parent

group

Subsidiary of investor which has

significant influence over the parent

group

The related parties of the Bank also includes key management personnel, their close family
members or entities which are subject to control, joint control or significant influence from key
management personnel’s close family members. Transactions between the Bank and the related
parties that are significant are disclosed separately and those that are not significant are disclosed

on an aggregate basis.

As of balance sheet date, the significant transactions between the Bank and the above related

parties for the year are as follows:

Interest income

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ (China), Ltd

Morgan Stanley Huaxin Securities
Company Limited

Total

2014 2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
253,771.27 0.28 87,694.41 0.09
712.33 0.00 - -
254,483.60 0.28 87,694.41 0.09
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3.

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

As of balance sheet date, the significant transactions between the Bank and the above related
parties for the year are as follows: - continued

Interest expenses

Morgan Stanley Bank
International Limited

Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd.

Morgan Stanley (China) Private Equity
Investment Management Co., Ltd

Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Company Limited

Morgan Stanley Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited

Others

Total

Fee and commission income

Morgan Stanley Asia Limited

Morgan Stanley Commodities Trading
(China) Limited

Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited

Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Shanghai) Limited

Total

2014 2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)

- - 561,176.99 1.01
1,437,423.71 473 12,676.74 0.02
526,660.22 1.73 - -
250,937.56 0.83 - -
88,804.01 0.29 - -
1,167.94 0.00 - -
2,304,993.44 7.58 573,853.73 1.03
2014 2013

Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)

94,326,385.78 98.25 69,655,445.75 62.86

- - 50,000.00 0.04

- - 50,000.00 0.04

- - 50,000.00 0.04
94,326,385.78 98.25 69,805,445.75 62.98
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RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

As of balance sheet date, the significant transactions between the Bank and the above related
parties for the year are as follows: - continued

Operating expenses

Morgan Stanley Management Service
(Shanghai) Limited

2014 2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
2,880,000.00 4.43 1,480,000.00 1.90

The Bank conducts business with related parties in the course of daily business according to

ordinary business terms.

Unsettled amount of related transactions:

Due from banks

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi
UFJ, Ltd

Due to financial institutions

Morgan Stanley Huaxin Fund Management
Company Limited

Customer deposits

Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd.

Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Company Limited

Morgan Stanley (China) Private Equity
Investment Management Co., Ltd

Morgan Stanley Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited

Others

Total

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
257.68 0.00 301.33 0.00
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
769.35 18.21 866.56 19.60
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
119,000,095.27 11.31 17,161,772.33 1.22
76,224,487.79 7.25 - -
45,000,000.43 4.28 - -
9,065,780.60 0.86 - -
34.22 0.00 24,773.40 0.00
249,290,398.31 23.70 17,186,545.73 1.22
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4.

RELATED PARTIES RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS - continued

Unsettled amount of related transactions: - continued

Interest payable

Morgan Stanley Properties
(China) Co., Ltd.

Morgan Stanley (China) Private Equity
Investment Management Co., Ltd

Morgan Stanley Investment Consultancy
(Beijing) Company Limited

Morgan Stanley Information Technology

(Shanghai) Limited
Others

Total

Other assets

Morgan Stanley Asia Limited

Morgan Stanley Management Service

(Shanghai) Limited
Total

Other liabilities

Morgan Stanley Management Service

(Shanghai) Limited

Compensation of key management personnel

Compensation of key
management personnel

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
674,173.21 12.02 3,574.86 0.09
330,397.22 5.89 - -
91,019.66 1.62 - -
22,133.09 0.39 - -
0.08 0.00
1,117,723.26 19.92 3,574.86 0.09
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
638,295.08 18.90 2,243,480.29 5.69
- - 510,000.00 1.30
638,295.08 18.90 2,753,480.29 6.99
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
720,000.00 3.63 580,000.00 2.78
2014 2013
Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
RMB (%) RMB (%)
3,056,584.02 9.17 5,173,044.10 15.57

Key management personnel are those who have the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Bank.
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XI.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview of risk management
(1) Overview of risks

The Bank is exposed to various risks in its business operations, especially the use of financial
instruments; risks are becoming diversified and complicated. The key risks faced by the Bank are
credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. Market risks include foreign exchange
risk and interest rate risk.

The Bank's risk management objectives are to achieve proper balance between risks and yield,
minimize the adverse impacts of risks on the Bank's performance, and maximize the benefits of
the Bank. Based on these risk management objectives, the Bank's basic risk management strategy
is to identify and analyze the industry's exposure to various risks, establish appropriate bottom
line for risk tolerance, implement risk management, and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measurements are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for establishing the Bank's overall risk
management strategies, monitoring and evaluating the Bank's risk management and internal
control system by Risk Committee, Senior Management Committee and other committees. Under
Risk Committee, the Bank has established the Credit Management Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee, Operational Risk Committee, and BCP Committee to manage its credit,
market, operational, liquidity and business contingency risks.

Credit risk

(1) Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when the borrower or counterparty fails to meet the required obligations in the
agreement on due date.

The Bank's credit exposure is mainly from corporate loan lending and interbank placements. The
Bank implements its credit risk management practices under the leadership of the Bank’s Risk
Committee The Bank’s Credit Policy is reviewed and approved annually by the Bank’s Board of
Directors and is the primary policy document that governs the credit risk management and control
framework, which includes descriptions on credit assessment, credit rating, loan classification,
country risk management, credit limit authorities and problem exposure management etc.

Credit Risk Department performs independent credit risk oversight and monitoring, including the
independent assessment, monitoring and control of credit risk for the Bank to ensure credit risk
taken is within the risk level set by the Board of Directors of the Bank. The Credit Management
Committee is appointed by the Bank’s Risk Committee to perform credit approval function jointly
with Credit Risk Department.
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XI. RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

2. Credit risk - continued

(2) Maximum credit risk exposure information

Without taking into account of any collateral held or any other credit enhancement, the maximum
credit risk exposure as of the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of financial assets less
impairment loss. The maximum credit risk exposure is disclosed below:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB

On-balance sheet items
Loans and advances to customers 295,500,000.00 99,000,000.00
Inter-banks receivable 449,117,239.14  1,305,027,438.02
Include: Due from banks 149,117,239.14 204,186,338.02

Placements with banks and other financial

institutions 300,000,000.00 1,100,841,100.00
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,476,793,710.00 665,041,693.23
Interest receivable 51,864,291.93 14,681,038.65
Other financial assets 2,074,423.31 24,110,745.09
Total on-balance sheet items 2,275,349,664.38 2,107,860,914.99
Total off-balance sheet items 3,331,400.00 3,678,400.00
Total 2,278,681,064.38  2,111,539,314.99

Other financial assets include security deposit, fees receivable and pending receivable of bond
trading etc.

Except for credit loans, certain credit enhancement measures such as guarantee, pledge are taken
by the Bank for other loans, off-balance sheet items etc, to mitigate credit risk exposure to an
acceptable level.
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RISK MANAGEMENT- continued

Credit risk - continued

(3) Loans and advances to customers and inter-banks receivable
Overdue and impaired

(i) As of 31 December 2014, the Bank had nil overdue or impaired loans and advances to
customers and inter-banks receivable. (31/12/2013: Nil)

(if) Not overdue and not impaired

31/12/2014
Normal Total
RMB RMB
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans 295,500,000.00 295,500,000.00
Inter-banks receivable 449 117,239.14  449,117,239.14
31/12/2013
Normal Total
RMB RMB
Loans and advances to customers
- Loans 99,000,000.00 99,000,000.00
Inter-banks receivable 1,305,027,438.02 1,305,027,438.02

For loans and advances to customers and inter-banks receivable not overdue and not impaired, the
Bank has provided provision according to collective assessment.

(4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB RMB
Neither overdue nor impaired
Bonds held for trading 1,476,793,710.00 665,041,693.23

The investments in debt securities include mainly Government bonds, PBOC bills and financial
institution bonds held by the Bank.
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Credit risk - continued
(5) Analysis on credit risk concentration of financial assets

The Bank manages credit risk concentration of financial assets by industry, relevant analysis can
be referred to Note VIII, 6(2).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of loss or bankruptcy arises from the Bank's failure to provide sufficient
funds for the decrease in liabilities or the increase in assets. Liquidity risk can also be caused by
the mismatch between the amount and maturity between assets and liabilities.

(1) Liquidity risk management

The Bank has set up liquidity risk management policy and procedures to identify and control the
short-term and long-term liquidity risk, ensure the Bank operates with prudent liquidity
environment, and at the same time also meet the requirement of the Bank’s daily operation
funding. The policy includes the following:

(i) The Bank closely monitors the structure of RMB and foreign currency position, term, limit,
and cost of maintaining liquidity.

(i) The Asset and Liability Management Committee holds meeting monthly to review liquidity
risk and discusses the optimization of assets and liabilities structure.

(iii) The Bank has implemented liquidity stress test and submitted reports to the Asset and
Liability Management Committee on a monthly basis to ensure the Bank's orderly operation
within one year under the condition of market credit/liquidity crunch.

(iv) The Asset and Liability Committee reviews the assets and liabilities management report and
business pipelines to ensure the appropriate liquidity and funding structures are in place.
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3. Liquidity risk - continued
(2) Analysis on liquidity risk of non-derivative instruments
The following is the maturity analysis for assets and liabilities held by the Bank:

The following table presents the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flow of the Bank for
non-derivative financial assets and liabilities as at balance sheet date.

31/12/2014
Current Within
& overdue one month 1-3 months 3-12 months Over 1 year No maturity date Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 308,903 - - - - 183,154 492,057
Due from banks 149,117 - - - - - 149,117
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions - - 4,596 13,711 327,448 - 345,755
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 1,524,731 - - - - 1,524,731
Loans and advances
to customers - - 102,560 202,709 - - 305,269
Other financial assets - 639 - - - 1,435 2,074
Total financial assets 458,020 1,525,370 107,156 216,420 327,448 184,589 2,819,003
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions 4 - - - - - 4
Sale for repurchase financial assets - 294,257 - - - - 294,257
Customer deposits 63,490 694,727 232,240 70,306 - - 1,060,763
Other financial liabilities - 16,950 720 - - 1,804 19,474
Total financial liabilities 63,494 1,005,934 232,960 70,306 - 1,804 1,374,498
Net value 394,526 519,436 (125,804) 146,114 327,448 182,785 1,444,505
31/12/2013
Current Within
& overdue one month 1-3 months 3-12 months Over 1 year No maturity date Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 377,462 - - - - 251,556 629,018
Due from banks 204,186 - - - - - 204,186
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions - 991,849 1,389 110,799 - - 1,104,037
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 678,433 - - - - 678,433
Loans and advances
to customers - - 1,457 100,409 - - 101,866
Other financial assets - 22,908 - - - 1,203 24,111
Total financial assets 581,648 1,693,190 2,846 211,208 - 252,759 2,741,651
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions 4 - - - - - 4
Customer deposits 55,638 656,765 999 726,831 - - 1,440,233
Other financial liabilities - 17,524 720 - - 2,100 20,344
Total financial liabilities 55,642 674,289 1,719 726,831 - 2,100 1,460,581
Net value 526,006 1,018,901 1,127 (515,623) - 250,659 1,281,070
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Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of losses in the Bank’s on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet
business due to adverse changes in market prices. The Bank’s market risks mainly include foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk. The Bank manages its market risk through limit control
(including trading limit, risk limit and stop loss limit), market risk measurement, monitoring and
reporting, bond market value comparison and market risk capital management. Market Risk
Department is responsible for monitoring market risk and report to Risk Management Committee
on a regular basis. The Bank has established and enhanced market risk limit management system,
specified and standardized the process and reporting of market risk management. The Internal
Audit Department performs audit on market risks management on a regular basis. The Bank has
regularly performed stress testing to evaluate the potential loss arising from market risk under
specific adverse incident in order to strengthen market risk management.

(1) Foreign exchange risk

The Bank is set up and operates in PRC, the Bank’s foreign currency business is mainly in USD
and HKD. The Bank's loans to customers are mainly in RMB and USD.

The Bank monitors the foreign exchange risk mainly through the management of exposure limits.

The following table presents the structure analysis of the Bank’s financial assets and financial
liabilities by currencies as at balance sheet date:

31/12/2014
usD HKD Other currencies
RMB in RMB eqv. in RMB eqgv. in RMB eqv. Total
RMB’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 489,060 2,759 79 - 491,898
Due from banks 5711 120,315 23,058 33 149,117
Placements with banks and
other financial institution 300,000 - - - 300,000
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,476,794 - - - 1,476,794
Interest receivable 51,864 - - - 51,864
Loans and advances to customers 295,500 - - - 295,500
Other financial assets 1,435 635 4 - 2,074
Total financial assets 2,620,364 123,709 23,141 33 2,767,247
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 4 - - - 4
Repurchase agreements 294,000 - - - 294,000
Customer deposits 996,727 55,071 40 - 1,051,838
Interest payable 5,569 39 - - 5,608
Other financial liabilities 17,671 189 1,614 - 19,474
Total financial liabilities 1,313,971 55,299 1,654 - 1,370,924
Net open position 1,306,393 68,410 21,487 33 1,396,323
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4. Market risk - continued

(1) Foreign exchange risk - continued

31/12/2013
usD HKD Other currencies
RMB in RMB eqv. in RMB eqgv. in RMB eqv. Total
RMB’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000 RMB eqv’000
Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank 627,785 866 79 - 628,730
Due from banks 4,564 16,935 182,647 40 204,186
Placements with banks and
other financial institution 985,000 115,841 - - 1,100,841
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 665,042 - - - 665,042
Interest receivable 14,651 30 - - 14,681
Loans and advances to customers 99,000 - - - 99,000
Other financial assets 21,875 2,232 4 - 24,111
Total financial assets 2,417,917 135,904 182,730 40 2,736,591
Financial liabilities
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 4 - - - 4
Customer deposits 1,394,930 17,162 44 - 1,412,136
Interest payable 4,026 3 - - 4,029
Other financial liabilities 18,313 420 1,611 - 20,344
Total financial liabilities 1,417,273 17,585 1,655 - 1,436,513
Net open position 1,000,644 118,319 181,075 40 1,300,078

The following table illustrates the impact of 5% appreciation or 5% depreciation of the spot
exchange rate and forward exchange rate of RMB against all foreign currencies on owner's equity

of the Bank.
2014 2013
Increase/ (decrease)Increase/ (decrease)
in owner’s equity in owner’s equity
RMB’000 RMB’000
Appreciate by 5% (3,372) (11,229)
Depreciate by 5% 3,372 11,229

(2) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the impact of change in market interest rate on fair value of financial assets
and liabilities of the balance sheet and interest income and expenses of the income statement for
the period. The Bank's foreign exchange business lending rates and large amount deposit rates
primarily fluctuates with the Bank’s funding cost while the RMB business lending and deposit
rates fluctuates within the permitted range provided by the PBOC. The inter-bank placements
and takings interest rates are determined by the market.
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Market risk - continued

(2) Interest rate risk- continued

As of the balance sheet date, the interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Bank are as follows:

Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Interest receivable
Loans and advances to customers
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions
Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Interest payable
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net open position

Financial assets
Balances with the Central Bank
Due from banks
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Interest receivable
Loans and advances to customers
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Due to banks and
other financial institutions
Customer deposits
Interest payable
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net open position

31/12/2014
Within 1 month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Non-interest bearing Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
489,060 - - - - 2,838 491,898
149,117 - - - - - 149,117
- 300,000 - - - - 300,000
- 90,019 1,121,112 265,663 - - 1,476,794
R - - - - 51,864 51,864
- 295,500 - - - - 295,500
- - - - - 2,074 2,074
638,177 685,519 1,121,112 265,663 - 56,776 2,767,247
4 - - - - - 4
294,000 - - - - - 294,000
753,563 230,233 68,042 - - - 1,051,838
- - - - - 5,608 5,608
- - - - - 19,474 19,474
1,047,567 230,233 68,042 - - 25,082 1,370,924
(409,390) 455,286 1,053,070 265,663 - 31,694 1,396,323
31/12/2013
Within 1 month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Non-interest bearing Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
627,785 - - - - 945 628,730
204,186 - - - - - 204,186
991,453 109,388 - - - - 1,100,841
- 48,901 377,130 239,011 - - 665,042
- - - - - 14,681 14,681
- 99,000 - - - 99,000
- - - - - 24,111 24,111
1,823,424 257,289 377,130 239,011 - 39,737 2,736,591
4 - - - - - 4
707,792 970 703,374 - - - 1,412,136
- - - - - 4,029 4,029
- - - - - 20,344 20,344
707,796 970 703,374 - - 24,373 1,436,513
1,115,628 256,319 (326,244) 239,011 - 15,364 1,300,078
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Market risk - continued
(2) Interest rate risk- continued
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rates gap between the interest bearing
assets such as balances with the Central Bank; due from banks and other financial institutions;
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and other receivables and interest bearing
liabilities such as customer deposits as of the balance sheet date. The upward and downward
change of 50 basis points is used by management in evaluating the possible changes in interest
rates and the corresponding interest rate risks.

(i) Banking book

The following table illustrates from a profitability perspective, the impact of the increase or
decrease of the interest rate of all currencies by 50 basis points on the net interest income of the
banking book in next year. Banking book includes the interest bearing assets and interest bearing
liabilities except financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

2014 2013
(decrease)/ Increase  Increase/ (decrease)
in net interest income in net interest income

RMB’000 RMB’000
Increase by 50 basis points (256) 5,157
Decrease by 50 basis points 256 (5,157)

(if) Trading book

The following table illustrates from a economic value perspective, the impact of the increase or
decrease of the interest rate of all currencies by 50 basis points on the net assets of the trading
book in next year. Trading account mainly includes financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

2014 2013
(decrease)/ Increase  Increase/ (decrease)
in net assets in net assets
RMB’000 RMB’000
Increase by 50 basis points (4,949) (3,797)
Decrease by 50 basis points 4,949 3,797
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Capital adequacy
The Bank follows below principles in managing capital:

- To maintain a strong capital base and high-quality capital to support the development of its
business, and comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators;

- Adequately identify, measure, monitor, mitigate and control various risks to ensure the capital
level adapt to the level of risk and risk management.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are regularly monitored by the Bank’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee
and implemented by the CBRC. The required information is filed with the CBRC on a quarterly
basis.

Capital adequacy reflects the Bank's ability to maintain sustainable operation and resist the risks.
From 1 January 2013, in accordance with Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks
(Provisional) and other relevant regulations promulgated by the CBRC, commercial banks are
required to comply with minimum capital requirements, i.e. minimum core tier 1 capital adequacy
ratio, tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio of 5%, 6% and 8%, respectively.
Commercial banks are required to provide additional reserve capital which is 2.5% of
risk-weighted assets. Under some specific circumstances, commercial banks are required to
provide countercyclical buffer, which ranges from 0 - 2.5% of risk weighted assets. However, the
CBRC has yet to require countercyclical buffer for the time being. In addition, for systemically
important banks, a buffer requirement of 1% of risk weighted assets is required. The Bank is not
categorized as systemically important bank.

The Bank constantly monitors, analyses, reports capital adequacy result, and compares with the
management objectives to manage the capital adequacy ratio. The Bank has put in place various
measures, such as asset growth control, adjusting structure of risk assets, internal capital
accumulation, and capital injection, in order to ensure the capital adequacy ratios constantly
satisfy the regulatory requirements and internal management objectives, resist the potential risks
and support a sustainable development of business.

The Bank calculated capital adequacy ratio, tier 1 capital adequacy ratio and core tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio, in accordance with the Regulation Governing Capital of Commercial Banks
(Provisional) that is effective from 1 January 2013, as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
Risk weighted assets 1,073,124 857,286
Include: Credit risk weighted assets 667,892 499,289
Market risk weighted assets 146,021 111,169
Operational risk weighted assets 259,211 246,828
Capital, net 1,396,414 1,313,334
Include: Core tier 1 capital 1,391,914 1,312,334
Other tier 1 capital - -
Tier 2 capital 4,500 1,000
Core tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 130% 153%
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio 130% 153%
Capital adequacy ratio 130% 153%
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The valuation of the fair value is determined based on market related information and financial
instruments related information at a specific time. When determining the fair value of financial
instruments, the Bank considers the market price as the best approximation of the fair value of the
financial instruments for which there is an active market. For financial instruments of which the
market does not exist, the Bank adopts other valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
these financial assets and financial liabilities (details please refer to note 1V).

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

e The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices;

e The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis or observable market prices;

e The fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, a discount cash flow analysis is performed using the applicable yield curve
for the duration of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table illustrates the levels of fair values of the Bank’s financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at the balance sheet date:

31/12/2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 1,476,794 - 1,476,794
31/12/2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 665,042 - 665,042

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the year of 2014 and 2013.

The gains from changes in fair value of the Bank arising from financial assets at FVTPL was
RMB 7,935,376.77 (2013: Loss of RMB 631,092.77).

218
.59



MORGAN STANLEY BANK INTERNATIONAL (CHINA) LIMITED

XII.

1.

XII.

XIV.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - continued
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis - continued

The Bank employs control processes to validate the fair value of its financial instruments,
including those derived from pricing models. These control processes are designed to assure that
the values used for financial reporting are based on observable inputs wherever possible. In the
event that observable inputs are not available, the control processes are designed to assure that the
valuation approach utilised is appropriate and consistently applied and that the assumptions are
reasonable. These control processes include reviews of the pricing model’s theoretical soundness
and appropriateness by Morgan Stanley Group personnel with relevant expertise who are
independent from the trading desks.

Additionally, groups within the Finance, Market Risk and Credit Risk Departments that are
independent from the Trading Divisions participate in the review and validation of the fair values
generated from pricing models, as appropriate. Where a pricing model is used to determine fair
value, recently executed comparable transactions and other observable market data are considered
for purposes of validating assumptions underlying the model.

In the current year, the Bank’s financial assets measured at fair value comprise the Government
bonds and financial institution bonds, etc. These financial assets are valued using quoted prices
in active markets when available. To the extent quoted prices are not available, fair value is
determined based on a valuation model that has interest rate yield curves, cross-currency basis
index spreads, and country credit spreads for structures similar to the bond in terms of issuer,
maturity and seniority as inputs. These financial assets are generally categorised in Level 1 or 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

Fair value of assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value but fair value disclosures are
required

The assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the balance sheet include: balances with the
Central Bank, due from banks, placements with banks and other financial institutions, loans and
advances to customers, interest receivable, due to banks and other financial institutions,
placements from banks and other financial institutions, repurchase agreements, customer deposits,
interest payable and etc.

The maturity term of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value at balance sheet date are
within 1 year except placements with banks and other financial institutions. The placements with
banks and other financial institutions with remaining maturity more than 1 year are priced with

floating rate. Accordingly, the fair values of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value
approximate the carrying amount as at balance sheet date.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform the current year's presentation.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Bank were approved on 17 April 2015 by the Board of Directors.

* END OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS * *
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